Public Document Pack

Cheshire E;s;&

oy A
CouncilZ

Northern Planning Committee

Agenda

Date: Wednesday, 4th October, 2023
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA

Members of the public are requested to check the Council's website the week the
Northern Planning Committee meeting is due to take place as Officers produce
updates for some or all of the applications prior to the commencement of the
meeting and after the agenda has been published.

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision-making meetings
are audio recorded and the recordings are uploaded to the Council’s website.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
To receive any apologies for absence.
2. Declarations of Interest/Pre Determination
To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests and for Members to declare if they have a
pre-determination in respect of any item on the agenda.

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2023 as a correct
record.

Please Contact:  Gaynor Hawthornthwaite

E-Mail: gaynor.hawthornthwaite @cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or
request for further information
Speakingatplanning@cheshireeast.gov.uk to arrange to speak at the
meeting



mailto:gaynor.hawthornthwaite@cheshireeast.gov.uk
mailto:Speakingatplanning@cheshireeast.gov.uk

4. Public Speaking

A total period of 5 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the
following:

e Ward Councillors who are not members of the Planning Committee
e The relevant Town/Parish Council

A period of 3 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the
following individuals/groups:

e Members who are not members of the planning committee and are not the
Ward Member

e Objectors

e Supporters

e Applicants

5. 21/5123M - IVY HOUSE, IVY ROAD, MACCLESFIELD: Proposed replacement
of existing buildings with 29 no. dwellings for Mr Daniel Brocklehurst, Peaks
and Plains Housing Trust (Pages 9 - 70)

To consider the above planning application.

6. 22/2593M - NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16
9HE: Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include
demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage and
their replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension,
internal and elevation alterations, demolition of the existing agricultural
building and part of the garage to be replaced with a single storey leisure
suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements, reconfiguration of
the garden curtilage and associated works for c/o Agent, Calderpeel (Pages
71 - 110)

To consider the above planning application.

7. 22/2594M - NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16
9HE: Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the
existing dwelling to include demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear
wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a reconfigured two
storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition
of the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced
with a single storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping
enhancements, reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated
works for c/o Agent, Calderpeel (Pages 111 - 120)

To consider the above planning application.
Membership: Councillors M Beanland, T Dean, K Edwards, M Gorman, S Holland,

T Jackson, D Jefferay (Chair), N Mannion, K Parkinson, J Place, J Smith, F Wilson (Vice-
Chair) and L Smetham






This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5 Agenda Item 3

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Northern Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 6th September, 2023 in the The Capesthorne Room -
Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA

PRESENT

Councillor D Jefferay (Chair)
Councillor F Wilson (Vice-Chair)

Councillors S Adams, M Beanland, T Dean, K Edwards, M Gorman,
S Holland, T Jackson, N Mannion, J Place and J Smith

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Robert Law, Principal Planning Officer

Faye Plant, Senior Planning Officer

Neil Jones, Highways Officer

James Thomas, Principal Planning and Highways Lawyer
Rachel Graves, Democratic Services Officer

26 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.
27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION

In relation to application 21/3146M, Councillor N Mannion declared that he
knew the agent. He had not discussed the application with them or
predetermined it.

In relation to application 21/3146M Councillor Fiona Wilson declared in the
interest of openness that she had previously been a member of the
Macclesfield Town Council’s Planning Committee. She had not attended
any meeting where the application had been discussed and had not
commented on it or predetermined it.

In relation to application 23/1971M, Councillor M Beanland declared he
had call-in the application and that he would speak as the ward councillor
and then leave the meeting and take no part in the consideration or vote
on the application.

28 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2023 be approved as a
correct record.



29

30

Page 6

PUBLIC SPEAKING
That the public speaking procedure be noted.

21/3146M - LAND NEAR FORMER OLD KINGS HEAD PUBLIC HOUSE,
CHESTERGATE, MACCLESFIELD: FULL PLANNING PERMISSION &
CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT FOR DEMOLITION OF THE
EXISTING BUILDINGS SITUATED ON THE SITE AND PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT FOR A 4 STOREY BUILDING PROVIDING 47
APARTMENTS, GROUND RETAIL/COMMERCIAL UNITS (TO BE USED
FOR FLEXIBLE PURPOSES WITHIN USE CLASS E), CAR PARKING,
LANDSCAPING AND ASSOCIATED ANCILLARY WORKS FOR R
BALL, IDCB PROPERTIES LIMITED

Consideration was given to the above planning application.

It was confirmed that the application was for 45 apartments and not 47 as
stated in the title of the report.

It was reported that a further submission had been made by the Ward
Member — Councillor Ashley Farrall, which stated that he had been in
contact with the applicant in relation to the making the design more in
keeping with the conservation area and that the applicant had been
amiable and taken on board his suggestions.

The following attended the meeting and spoke in relation to the
application:
Councillor Ashley Farrall (ward councillor) and Colin Williams (agent).

RESOLVED:

That for the reasons set out in the report the application be APPROVED,
subject to a S106 Agreement making provision for:

1. Affordable Housing — 2 units (social / affordable rent at 80% market
rent)
2. Overage Clause

and the following conditions:

Commencement of development (3 years)

Development in accordance with approved and amended plans
Construction of access prior to first occupation

Parking to be provided prior to first occupation.

Scheme of public realm works for Churchill Way and Chestergete
Road frontages to be submitted, approved and implemented
Landscaping scheme to be submitted and approved

Landscaping scheme to be implemented

arwnE

No



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.
15.

16.
17.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.

29.
30.

Page 7

Details of ground levels to be submitted, approved and
implemented

Details of external facing materials to be submitted, approved and
implemented and to include stone

Details of surfacing materials to be submitted and to be
conservation style in accordance with design guide

Details of fenestration to be submitted, approved and implemented
Details of boundary treatments to be submitted, approved and
implemented

Development to be carried out in accordance with submitted noise
survey with mitigation provided prior to first occupation
Contaminated land investigation to be submitted and approved
Verification of remediated contaminated land to be submitted and
approved

Bin storage to be provided prior to first occupation

Details of pile foundations to be submitted, approved and
implemented

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure to be provided prior to first occupation
Scheme of dust control to be submitted, approved and implemented
Scheme of foul and surface water drainage to be submitted,
approved and implemented

Submission, approval and implementation of a Construction
Environmental management Plan

Submission of scheme of archaeological investigations

Obscured glazing on specific plots (including but not exclusive to
apartments 15, 16, 31 and 32) and glazed screening to some
balconies

Accordance with Ecological Assessments

Nesting bird mitigation measures to be submitted, approved and
implemented

Details of external lighting to be submitted, approved and
implemented

Scheme for ecological enhancement to be to be submitted,
approved and implemented

Details of cycle storage to be submitted and approved.

Travel Information Packs to be submitted and approved

A scheme ensuring that the development achieves at least 10%
renewable and low carbon energy sources shall be submitted,
approved, and implemented

In order to give proper effect to the Committee’s intent and without
changing the substance of its decision, authority is delegated to the Head
of Planning in consultation with the Chair (or in their absence the Vice
Chair) to correct any technical slip or omission in the resolution, before
issue of the decision notice.

The meeting adjourned for a short break.



Page 8

31 23/1971M - 64, DICKENS LANE, POYNTON, SK12 1INT: DEMOLITION
OF EXISTING DETACHED DWELLING AND THE ERECTION OF FIVE
DETACHED DWELLINGS INCLUDING ASSOCIATED ACCESS AND
LANDSCAPE WORKS FOR ABODE PROPERTY DEVELOPMENTS,
C/O URBAN IMPRINT

Consideration was given to the above planning application.

The following attended the meeting and spoke in relation to the item:
Councillor Michael Beanland (ward councillor), Poynton Town Councillor
Laurence Clarke, Jason Rodgers (applicant) and Jo Gregory (agent).

Councillor Beanland left the meeting after speaking as the ward councillor
and did not return.

RESOLVED:

That for the reasons set out in the report the application be APPROVED,
subject to the following conditions:

Time Limit (3 years)

Development in accordance with approved plans

Materials as per application

Boundary details to be submitted, agreed and implemented,

Landscaping details to be submitted, agreed and implemented.

Details of bin storage area to be submitted, agreed and

implemented

Site access to be provided in accordance with approved plans

Parking to be laid out and available for use prior to occupation

Construction management plan to be submitted, agreed and

implemented

10. EV infrastructure plan to be submitted agreed and implemented

11. Habitat method creation statement and 30 year management plan
to be submitted, agreed and implemented.

12.  Ecological enhancement scheme to be submitted agreed and
implemented

13.  Breeding Birds — timing of works and survey prior to the removal of
any vegetation.

14. Compliance with arboricultural statement, arboricultural method
statement and tree protection plans accompanying the application.

15. Contamination report to be submitted if contamination is found

16.  Soil to be tested prior to importation onto site

17. A scheme for surface water drainage and foul water drainage shall
be submitted, approved, and implemented.

18. Removal of Permitted development rights for Classes B and C
(alterations to the roof)

19. Details of a swept path analysis to be submitted, approved, and

implemented.

ok wNE

© o N



Page 9

Informatives

Construction hours

Dust management

Environmental Protection Act

S184 licence for vehicle crossovers

In order to give proper effect to the Committee’s intentions and without
changing the substance of the decision, authority is delegated to the Head
of Planning, in consultation with the Chair (or in their absence the Vice
Chair) of Northern Planning Committee to correct any technical slip or
omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes
and issue of the decision notice.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.14 pm

Councillor D Jefferay (Chair)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11 Agenda ltem 5

Application No:  21/5123M

Location: IVY HOUSE, IVY ROAD, MACCLESFIELD
Proposal: Proposed replacement of existing buildings with 29 no. dwellings
Applicant: Mr Daniel Brocklehurst, Peaks and Plains Housing Trust
Expiry Date: 08-Sep-2023
SUMMARY

The development of 29no. C3 dwellings on a previously developed site, formerly comprising
C3 dwellings prior to site clearance and demolition, is considered to be acceptable in principle
within the settlement boundary area of Macclesfield, a Principal Town location. The mix, tenure
and type of housing albeit of 100% affordable housing nature, in excess of policy requirements
is considered to be appropriate and meet defined needs for the area. The design, layout and
scale of the development is considered appropriate given local area themes, density
requirements and scale of neighbouring properties. Each plot is considered to afford
appropriate levels of external amenity space for future occupants, plus vehicular and cycle
parking hat meet recommended standards for amounts and sizes. It is also not considered the
development would detrimentally impact retained trees, particularly those along Ivy Road and
Bransdale Way which are visually attractive, green features in the area. There are no concerns
with regards to residential amenity, pollution control, highways safety and flood risk
management/water prevention subject to the use of planning conditions.

Whilst the proposals would amount to loss in part of Protected Open Space previously allocated
as amenity grass space for the bungalows which once stood on site and also as visual relief on
vy Road in the context of the dense Weston estate, it is considered that given the lesser built
footprint, the loss of the bungalows, appropriate density and enhancement of the adopted
footway with soft landscaping (public open space) between vy Road and Countess Road
proposed, that this loss is acceptable.

The application was subject of a viability assessment which concluded with grant funding,
financial contributions towards planning obligations for biodiversity net loss off-setting (habitat
creation off-site), education, NHS, Open Space and Outdoor Sport and Recreation, that it would
not be viable to pay towards these requested contributions. It is considered on this occasion
that due to the need for this type of affordable housing in a sustainable settlement location, of
which is of particularly high design quality, is considered to outweigh the non-compliance with
policy with regards to offsetting of impacts of the development covering biodiversity net loss off-
setting (habitat creation off-site), education, NHS, Open Space and Outdoor Sport and
Recreation.

The lack of policy compliant financial contributions is outweighed by these other material
considerations in this case, and a recommendation of approval is therefore made.

OFFICIAL



Page 12

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION

Approve subject s106 agreement and conditions.

REASON FOR REFERRAL

This application involves a residential development of 20-199 dwellings, and under the terms
of the Council’s Constitution it requires a Committee decision.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT

The site previously contained Ivy House and 16no. bungalows with 15n0. lock-up garages with
associated infrastructure and landscape all in a residential use, however in the time the
application has been awaiting determination these have all since been demolished.

The site now sits as vacant brownfield/previously developed land with a footpath through the
centre providing a cut through from lvy Road (east) to Countess Road (west). Though the site
is surrounded by hoarding to keep it secure prior to re-development the footpath is an adopted
highways footway (not PROW). The site formerly had areas of open space, still highlighted on
policy constraints mapping as Protected Open Space ‘WE29 Bungalows south of lvy House’
forming amenity green space of grassed frontages that provided spatial separation and visual
relief for the former dwellings occupying the site, this did contribute to a lower density and
sylvan feel to the site.

Surrounding the site is an established and predominantly residential area of Macclesfield
comprising single storey bungalows, blocks of flats/apartments, two storey
terraced/semi/detached houses and St Johns School. The predominant facing materials for
buildings in this area are red/brown mixed rough profile brick, some white/cream render, grey
concrete tile or slate roof and white/brown upvc fenestration. Most properties including the
school are set back from the highway they are accessed from by tree lines, front gardens and
some grass verges creating a wide tree lined boulevard feel. To Ivy Road is an established
street tree line and across from this the trees near the school are protected by way of Tree
Protection Order. The site has accesses from both lvy Road and Countess Road. The southern
boundary of the site also has a tree line to Bransdale Way.

DETAILS OF PROPOSAL

The application seeks full planning permission for the replacement of existing buildings with
29no. dwellings.

The site previously contained Ivy House and 16no. bungalows with 15n0. lock-up garages with
associated infrastructure and landscape all in residential use. These were demolished almost
two years ago in accordance with planning approval 21/0230M. The properties previously had
the following mix/split/tenure:

11no. one-bedroom houses

2no. two-bedroom houses

OFFICIAL




Page 13

6no. one-bedroom flats
1no. two-bedroom flats
27n0. one-bedroom bedsits/studios

The proposed development would represent an overall loss of 18no. residential units at the site.
The site is owned by Peaks and Plains Housing Trust, a Registered Provider of Affordable
Housing. The site was formerly owned and managed by Macclesfield Borough Council, but the
ownership transferred to Peaks and Plains in 2006. The application states that the proposed
scheme is supported by Cheshire Home Choice and Homes England

The proposals on which the following appraisal is based were received during April and October
2022. The proposal is said to ‘re-develop the site located to west of Ivy Road, north of Bransdale
Way, which is currently occupied by lvy House and 16no. bungalows. The proposal is to replace
the existing buildings with 29no. modern family homes comprising the following mix 2no. 4
bedroom 7 person houses; 7no. 3 bedroom 5 person houses’ 12no. 2 bedroom 4 person
houses; 6no. 1 bedroom 2 person apartments and 2no. 3 bedroom two person bungalows.’ The
Affordable Housing Statement confirms the proposals would provide the following split of
accommodations 55% Affordable Rent and 45% Shared Ownership.

The dwellings are proposed as the following mix/split/tenure for the following occupancies:
Affordable Rent — total 16no.

No of No of
Plot No | Type Tenure GIA Beds Occupants | Storey
Semi- Affordable
Plot 5 Detached Rent 79m2 a 2
Semi- Affordable
Plot 11 | Detached Rent 117m2 7 2
Semi- Affordable
Plot 12 | Detached Rent 122m2 7 2
Affordable
Plot 13 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1
Affordable
Plot 14 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1
Affordable
Plot 15 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1
Affordable
Plot 16 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1
Affordable
Plot 17 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1
Affordable
Plot 18 | Apartment | Rent 51m2 2 *1

OFFICIAL




Page 14

Affordable

Plot 21 | Apartment Rent F9m2 2
Affordable

Plot 22 | Apartment Rent f9m2 2
Affordable

Plot 23 | Apartment Rent 79m2 2
Affordable

Plot 24 | Bungalow Rent 62m2 2
Semi- Affordable

Plot 25 | Detached Rent 79m2 2
Semi- Affordable

Plot 26 | Detached Rent 79m2 2
Affordable

Plot 29 Bungalow Rent 62m2 2

Affordable Home Ownership (Shared Ownership)- total 13no.

Mo of Mo of

Plot No | Type Tenure GIA Beds Occupants | Storey
Semi- Shared

Plot 1 Detached Ownership | 79m2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 2 Detached Ownership [ 79m2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 3 Detached Ownership | 79m2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 4 Detached Ownership | 79m2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 6 Detached Ownership | 79m2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 7 Detached Ownership | 93m2 5
Semi- Shared

Plot 8 Detached Ownership | 93m2 5
Semi- Shared

Plot 9 Detached Ownership | 93m2 5
Semi- Shared

Plot 10 | Detached Ownership | 93m2 5
Semi- Shared

Plot 19 | Detached Ownership | 79m2 2 4
Semi- Shared

Plot 20 | Detached Ownership | 93m2 3

OFFICIAL




Page 15

Semi- Shared

Plot 27 | Detached Ownership | 93m2 3 5 2
Semi- Shared

Plot 28 | Detached Ownership | 93m2 3 5 2

The proposed materials are indicated as brick, thin edge tile, mid grey upvc windows and doors
and boundary treatments comprising brick boundary walls, close boarded timber fencing and
metal railings. As part of the proposed works new and altered vehicular and pedestrian access
are proposed with amendments to the footpath including additional landscaping, running
through the middle of the site connecting lvy Road with Countess Road. In addition, due to land
levels a series of retaining walls are indicated on the Proposed Site Plans within garden areas.
There were said to be 31no. previous parking spaces for the dwellings that once stood on the
site and 59no. proposed including 7no. neighbouring property parking to the north of the site
accessed off Countess Road. It is proposed that the site foul sewage will be disposed of by
connection to main sewer and surface water to existing watercourse within 20m of the site as
indicated in the Drainage Strategy Document and application form. It is proposed that refuse
collection will be taken from Ivy Road or from the access road which edges the western
boundary of the site, with bins wheeled to the front of properties on collection day. For the
houses, space is proposed to be allocated for refuse and recycling bins and for the apartments
it is proposed that a communal bin store will be provided in the courtyard with bin sizes and
capacity in line with the Councils current requirements.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

21/0230M — Determination for demolition of buildings — approval required — approved with
conditions — 25" May 2021

17/6013D - discharge of condition 11 on application 14/5264M for demolition of 12 garages
and construction of 3 no. 2 bed houses — approved with conditions — 5" February 2018

17/5844M — single storey side and rear extension — 22" December 2017

15/4005M — two new car parking spaces adjacent existing drop off point and main entrance —
approved with conditions — 12" May 2016

14/5246M - Demolition of 12no. garages currently existing on site. Construction of 3no. 2 bed
family homes — approved with conditions — 10" June 2015

09/3221M - construction of single storey infill extension to form a mobility scooter store —
approved with conditions

02/0257P — vehicular access — approved — 8" April 2002
78012P — proposed pitched roof — approved — 11™ July 1994

76224P — formation of access provision of hardstanding and erection of conservatory to side —
approved — 10" January 1994

OFFICIAL



Page 16

29037P - enclosed fire escape — approved — 3@ March 1982

Relevant Pre-Application History:
PRE/0332/21 - Proposed demolition of lvy House, associated bungalows and single storey
garages and development of 29 no. new homes

PRE/0243/14 - Proposed Demolition of Existing Garages & Development of 105 Affordable
Homes

Relevant Policies/Legislation:

Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2017 (CELPS)
MP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
PG1 Overall Development Strategy

PG2 Settlement Hierarchy

PG7 Spatial Distribution of Development

SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East
SD2 Sustainable Development Principles

IN1 Infrastructure

IN2 Developer Contributions

SC1 Leisure and Recreation

SC2 Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities

SC3 Health and Well-Being

SC4 Residential Mix

SC5 Affordable Homes

SE1 Design

SEZ2 Efficient Use of Land

SE3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

SE4 Landscape

SE5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland

SEG6 Green Infrastructure

SES8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

SE9 Energy Efficient Development

SE12 Pollution, Land Contamination and Land Instability
SE13 Flood Risk and Water Management

CO1 Sustainable Travel and Transport

CO3 Digital Connections

CO4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments
Appendix C — Parking Standards

Site Allocations and Development Policies Document 2022 (SADPD)
PG9 Settlement Boundaries

GEN1 Design Principles

GENS Aerodrome safeguarding

GEN7 Recovery of planning obligations reduced on viability grounds
ENV1 Ecological network

ENV2 Ecological implementation

ENV3 Landscape character

ENV5 Landscaping

ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation

OFFICIAL



Page 17

ENV7 Climate change

ENV8 District heating network priority areas

ENV12 Air Quality

ENV14 Light pollution

ENV15 New development and existing uses

ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk
ENV17 Protecting water resources

HOU1 Housing mix

HOU2 Specialist housing provision

HOUS3 Self and custom build dwellings

HOUG6 Accessibility and wheelchair housing standards
HOUS8 Space, accessibility and wheelchair housing standards
HOU12 Amenity

HOU13 Residential standards

HOU13 Housing density

HOU15 Housing delivery

HOU16 Small and medium-sizes sites

INF1 Cycleways, bridleways and footpaths

INF3 Highways safety and access

INF6 Protection of existing and proposed infrastructure
INF9 Utilities

RECL1 Open space protection

REC2 Indoor sport and recreation implementation
REC3 Green space implementation

REC5 Community facilities

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Technical housing standards — Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS)
Cheshire East Borough Design Guide 2017 SPD (CEDG)
Housing SPD

Trees and Development SPD (TSPD)

Designing Out Crime SPD (DOC)

Section 106/ Planning Obligations (S106/PO SPD)
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Open Space Assessment (OSA)

Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2013
Housing Development Study 2015 (HDS)

CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning)

Responses to consultation (latest consultation responses only — previous responses to
original consultation available on Council website)

United Utilities — no objection subject to conditions relating to a detailed drainage strategy.

LLFA — Further information requested

OFFICIAL



Page 18

Environmental Protection — No objection subject to conditions relating to low emission boilers,
EV infrastructure, a Travel Plan and contaminated land

Highways — No objections

Public Rights of Way — No objections — development will not affect PROW

Strategic Housing — No objections

Education — Financial contribution to secondary education required

Cadent Gas — no objection subject to the use of informatives regarding safe working around
gas equipment lines etc.

Macclesfield Town Council — no objection to the proposals subject to protection of trees,
residential amenity and residents phone lines.

Police Designing Out Crime — made observations as follows:

Design of recessed doors/window frames and framing overhang negative effect overall
regarding natural surveillance, people may hide behind them.

Further information required as to planting in areas of defensible space and as markers
for ‘enclosure’ to private spaces and public spaces such as private gardens, footpaths
and car parks.

Bin and cycle stores need good observation and means of full enclosure with access
controls.

Increased surveillance required from windows on side elevation of plots with side
parking, cannot just rely on passing pedestrians etc.

Low height walls require something topping them to stop them being used as seating.
Scheme of external lighting to be submitted to ensure safe passage for pedestrians and
deter anti-social behaviour.

Metal bar gate should be provided for the 7no. Countess Road parking spaces to ensure
security.

Flat top bollards should be replaced with a design that discourages seating.

OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

Responses received from public/local groups to the most recent set of revisions:

2no. Letters from the public were received objecting to the proposals for the following
summarised reasons:

Insufficient on-site parking

Increase in vehicular traffic in an area with existing congestion problems.

Insufficient visibility due to properties place on the corner of a highways junction.

Lack of consideration for parking for residents of no. 61-69 Countess Road of which
there are 8no. spaces available and 5no. will be removed, resulting in 5no. dwellings
with 3 parking spaces where parking is an issue in the area due to proximity of schools.

1no. Letters from the public were received supporting the proposals summarised as follows:

Provision of affordable housing
Housing that is well-designed and laid out.

OFFICIAL



Page 19

1no. Letters from the public were received making an observation about the proposals
summarised as follows:

e Seeking preservation and protection of biodiversity and nature conservation throughout
the construction of the development in line with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

e Sought confirmation of the protection of hedges to rear of gardens serving 62 to 64 lvy
Road from impact or damage as a result generally of the development and erection of
boundary treatments etc.

e Concern that without 2.1m fencing that residents amenity would be detrimentally
impacted as a result of the development.

e Traffic reduction and speed reduction measures should be considered to offset the
impact of the development as a result of additional family homes with more occupants,
also considering safety of pedestrians including children egressing from the school
opposite.

e Insufficient parking to serve some of the houses due to increased number of occupants.

Responses received from public/local groups to the revised package dated 6™ April
2022:

Macclesfield Civic Society — made an observation as follows:

-The revised plans retain the same approach presenting a modest, neat and restrained
elevations with appropriate materials and look forward to the scheme being implemented.

3no. public comments objecting to the proposals were received regarding the following:

-The revised plans still show a new tree planted by plot 1 by the telephone pole and this should
be removed as the previous tree caused issues with the phone lines.

-The proposals will result in additional traffic and parking problems on Countess Road and
would detrimentally impact the safety of pedestrians including children using the school as
result.

-House 25 to 37 Countess Road would lose rear access with no though of electric vehicle
charging point requirements when this need one.

1no. public comment making an observation in regards to the proposals was raised covering
the following:

- Unsure of how landscaping such as trees will be maintained long term, with regards to growth
and foliage drop on vehicles, pathways etc.

- The 1no. tree proposed in front of no. 66 lvy Road is a replacement tree for one removed,
however is poorly positioned as it is close to telephone poles and will cause issues with the line
as the previous tree had.

- Removal of 2no. trees to the boundary line of gardens no. 66 and 68 Ivy Road will detrimentally
impact nesting birds which are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. These
trees should be retained.

- Concerned that the development may lead to damage of shared boundary hedges as a result
of the development which may impact birds and bats and overall nature conservation.
Hedgerows should be conserved so as to respect and protect biodiversity. The 1.8m high
fences should not damage these hegderows.

-Neighbours sharing boundaries request fence heights be 2.1m to allow for better privacy
protection from overlooking into the gardens/habitable rooms of neighbours.

Responses received from public/local groups to the February 2022 scheme:

OFFICIAL



Page 20

Macclesfield Civic Society — made an observation as follows:
¢ Changes from original scheme are minor and do not detract from our welcoming much
need provision for dwellings under the affordable rental tenure.

Macclesfield Town Council — support the proposals however sought the inclusion of swift bricks,
siting of news trees not impact telephone lines and comments from police on security.

3no. public comments objecting to the proposals were received regarding the following:

- There are currently 8no. spaces for houses no. 61-69 Countess Road and now the plans show
3no. spaces left for these 5no. houses where parking is already an issue considering school
drop off/pick up. These spaces were not enough anyway for these dwellings to begin with.

- Unsure of how landscaping such as trees will be maintained long term, with regards to growth
and foliage drop on vehicles, pathways etc.

- The 1no. tree proposed in front of no. 66 Ivy Road is a replacement tree for one removed,
however is poorly positioned as it is close to telephone poles and will cause issues with the line
as the previous tree had.

- Removal of 2no. trees to the boundary line of gardens no. 66 and 68 lvy Road will detrimentally
impact nesting birds which are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. These
trees should be retained.

- If a bungalow was built behind hedgerow of no. 60 Ivy Road it would be at a higher level and
would prevent sun reaching the existing residential neighbours gardens.

- Insufficient space on the site to house all the dwellings and will prevent existing neighbours
being able to implement rear located electric vehicle charging points or parking spaces.

2 public comments made an observation as follows:
- Concern at loss of trees to bottom of garden at boundary line of 66-68 lvy Road which
are nested by birds. Any development should be aware of Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 re. offence to destroy birds nests.
- Loss or insertion of telephone lines near trees.

Responses received from public/local groups to the original scheme:

Macclesfield Town Council — support the application as it provides diversity and affordability of
homes with plenty of amenity space though seeks conditions to secure construction hours and
noise management/dust during the construction of the development as the site is opposite a
primary school.

Macclesfield Civic Society — made an observation as follows:

-The redevelopment of the site to provide affordable housing in various tenures is welcomed.

- The design and layout is well though out and to the standard expected from both the applicant
and their architects, with restrained elevations and careful materials vocabulary this has the
potential to be outstanding.

-The usual assessment of impact on site features and neighbours amenities will require
undertaking.

2no. Public comments were received making observations in respect of the proposals:

-Good to see the plans support provision of natural wildlife areas including bat and bird boxes.
-Concerned that the development may lead to damage of shared boundary hedges as a result
of the development which may impact birds and bats and overall nature conservation.

OFFICIAL



Page 21

Hedgerows should be conserved so as to respect and protect biodiversity. The 1.8m high
fences should not damage these hegderows.

-Neighbours sharing boundaries request fence heights be 2.1m to allow for better privacy
protection from overlooking into the gardens/habitable rooms of neighbours.

-The payment of £65,370 due to shortfall on primary and secondary school places does not
appear to compensate for a lack of school plans, when school places are already at capacity?
What will this payment be used for and how will it be used to create additional pupil availability?
-Queries whether wider road layouts and speed reduction techniques will be implemented on
lvy Road as a result of the development given Ivy Road already has significant issues with
speed and traffic usage and that the development will add to this through the additional larger
dwellings with multiple cars, trip generation, drop off at St Johns school etc. Further assessment
of the lvy Road situation should be undertaken with solutions to these existing problems brought
forward.

-Further to the Phase Il assessment what measures will be taken to prevent adjacent residents
exposure/affects by inhalation of elevated levels of potential contamination during the
construction of the new houses. During the demolition of the Ivy House bungalows and flats
residents were already exposed to dust even with the considerate contractors dust suppression
in place, which impacts health adversely.

-Support the replacement of existing garages with parking spaces.

1no. public comments were received objecting to the proposals based on the following:

e Currently 8no. spaces for no. 61-69 Countess Road but plans only show 3no. spaces for
5n0. houses where there are already parking issues for those on Countess Road and
also during school drop off and pick up.

¢ Insufficient information regarding how boundary treatments will be placed, accessed and
maintained against Countess Road properties.

e Insufficient information regarding trees and hedgerow planting, retention and
maintenance as residents already face issues maintaining these due to bin sizes.

OFFICER APPRAISAL

Principle of the development

The site is located within the Macclesfield Principal Town settlement boundary as defined by
policy PG9 Settlement Boundaries of the SADPD. In accordance with policy PG2 Settlement
Hierarchy of the CELPS, it is in these locations that significant development will be encouraged
to support their revitalisation, recognising their roles as the most important settlements in the
borough. It is in these areas that development will maximise the use of existing infrastructure
and resources to allow jobs, homes and other facilities to be located close to each other and
accessible by public transport.

The principle of development of 29no. C3 Use Class residential dwellings on a site that has
formerly provided this within this settlement boundary location is therefore considered
acceptable. The development would also directly respond to policies such as SE2 Efficient Use
of Land as it encourages the re-use of previously developed land and buildings.

Housing Mix

Between the listed policies, guidance and supporting studies/assessments, which seek an
appropriate mixture of dwellings in terms of their types, facilities and tenure it new development

OFFICIAL



Page 22

should contribute to the creation of sustainable and mixed communities in line with the specific
needs for that settlement or location.

Policy SC4 Residential Mix of the CELPS states that ‘1.New residential development should
maintain, provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the
creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities. This could include Key Worker Housing
and people wishing to build or commission their own home.

2.To meet the needs arising from the increasing longevity of the borough’s older residents, the
council will require developers to demonstrate how their proposal will be capable or meeting,
and adapting to, the long term needs of this specific group of people. This would include the
provision of a variety of dwelling types and other measures to support Health and Wellbeing
and independent living through new developments that recognise the needs of older people,
those with dementia and other vulnerable people; this will include developing dementia-friendly
communities.’

Policy SC5 Affordable Homes of the CELPS states that ‘1. In residential developments
affordable housing will be provided as follows:

i.in developments of 15 or more dwellings (or 0.4 hectares) in the Principal Towns and Key
Service Centres at least 30% of all units are to be affordable;

iii.in future where Cheshire East Council evidence, such as housing needs studies or housing
market assessments, indicate a change in the boroughs housing need the above thresholds
and percentage requirements may be varied,

2.Units provided shall remain affordable for future eligible households or for the subsidy to be
recycled for alternative affordable housing provision;

3. The affordable homes provides must be of a tenure, size and type to help meet identified
housing needs and contribute to the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities
where people can live independently longer;

4. Affordable homes should be dispersed throughout the site, unless there are specific
circumstances or benefits that would warrant a different approach;

6. The Council will seek to improve choice and increase supply of affordable homes to reflect
that housing markets change over periods of time and therefore the products that are made
available to help people access rented and other affordable housing need to change to meet
these market conditions.’

Policy HOU1 Housing mix of the SADPD states ‘1. In line with LPS Policy SC 4 'Residential
mix', housing developments should deliver a range and mix of house types, sizes and tenures,
which are spread throughout the site and that reflect and respond to identified housing needs
and demands. Taking account of the most up to date housing needs and demand information,
national policies and where relevant, neighbourhood plan policies, a housing mix statement
should be provided at detailed planning/reserved matters stage for all major housing schemes
on how the proposed housing mix and type on the site responds to:
I. assessments of housing need including house types, tenures and sizes using Table
8.1 'Indicative house type tenures and sizes' as a starting point for analysis;
il. assessment of the local housing market and its characteristics;
iii. character and design of the site and local area reflecting on the scheme's ability to
accommodate a mix and range of housing; and iv. the requirements of Policy HOU 3
'Self and custom build dwellings'.

OFFICIAL



Page 23

2. The housing mix statement should demonstrate how the proposal would address the needs
of particular groups in the borough including first time buyers, those wishing to self build,
families, the requirements of an ageing population and those also wishing to downsize.

3. The housing mix statement should also address how the proposal will be capable of meeting,
and adapting to, the long term needs of the borough’s older residents including supporting
independent living.

4. Housing developments that do not demonstrate an appropriate mix on the site will not be
permitted. Where a housing mix statement is required, the council will consider the extent to
which it addresses the factors outlined above in determining whether a scheme provides for an
appropriate housing mix on site.’

Further to this policy HOUS8 Space, accessibility and wheelchair housing standards states that
‘1. In order to meet the needs of the borough’s residents and to deliver dwellings that are
capable of meeting people’s changing circumstances over their lifetime, the following
accessibility and wheelchair standards will be applied.
I. For major developments:
a. at least 30% of dwellings in housing developments should comply with requirement
M4 (2) Category 2 of the Building Regulations regarding accessible and adaptable
dwellings; and
b. at least 6% of dwellings in housing developments should comply with requirement
M4 (3)(2)(a) Category 3 of the Building Regulations regarding wheelchair adaptable
dwellings.
i. For specialist housing for older people:
a. all specialist housing for older people should comply with M4 (2) Category 2 of the
Building Regulations regarding accessible and adaptable dwellings; and
b. at least 25% of all specialist housing for older people should comply with
requirement M4 (3)(2)(a) Category 3 of the Building Regulations regarding
wheelchair adaptable dwellings.
2. The standards set out in Criterion 1 will apply unless site specific factors indicate that step-
free access cannot be achieved or is not viable. Where step-free access is not viable, the
Optional Technical requirements in part M of the Building Regulations will not apply.
3. Proposals for new residential development in the borough should meet the Nationally
Described Space Standard. The standard will apply from six months after the date of adoption
of the plan.’

The site covers a 0.93ha area proposing 29no. dwellings, which would be in line with the aims
of emerging policies HOU14 and HOU16 which support small to medium scale residential
development of up to 30no. dwellings and for residential schemes that generate a new density
of at least 30 dwellings per hectare particularly for those in Principal Town locations such as
this. The proposed density and overall number of dwellings, based solely on housing
density/number expected (design/amenity considered below) is therefore considered to be
acceptable. In terms of the size and adaptability of housing the proposals would meet the
requirements set out in the NDSS and HOUS providing much needed single level and four-
bedroom family homes of required tenure.

Paragraph 12.48 in the justification section for policy SC5 states ‘The council will seek the
balance of housing that best meets local needs and the characteristics of the site. Currently,
this is 65% affordable (or social) rent housing and 35% intermediate affordable housing. The
council may refine both the headline percentage, tenure split and any geographical variation as

OFFICIAL



Page 24

the plan progresses. Any future requirements will be determined through evidence such as the
Strategic Housing Market Assessment and local housing needs surveys.’

With regard to policy SC5 of the CELPS the scheme would exceed the 30% threshold for
affordable dwelling provision on site by providing 100% affordable homes. Whilst no market
units are proposed, the previous dwellings were also housing association/affordable units, as
such concern is not raised that the development would result in a proliferation of affordable
units, which would lead to an unbalanced or non-sustainable community within the immediate
area, which already has an appropriate mixture of market and housing association/affordable
and assisted living residential housing developments. The owners and managers of the site,
Peaks and Plains Housing Trust, are a Registered Provider of Affordable Housing within
Cheshire East, therefore the replacement housing scheme would be very similar, albeit instead
of directed towards older persons, it will be directed largely at family accommodation.

The proposed scheme will provide a 100% affordable housing scheme with tenure split as a
45% Shared Ownership and 55% Affordable Rent mix, in excess or differing to policy
requirements. In comparison a policy compliant scheme, based on a market development with
30% affordable dwellings on site, would equate to 9no. of the 29no. dwellings being affordable
and a split of 6no. affordable rent and 3no. intermediate tenure (shared ownership). The
Strategic Housing Officer raised no objections to the proposals as they consider the
development would assist in meeting the rented and intermediate housing needs for
Macclesfield as highlighted in the SHMA and other updated housing documents. The SHMA
update recognises the need in Macclesfield for affordable housing for two and three bedroom
homes as a priority, alongside the additional need to provide bungalows, which this
development would make a meaningful contribution towards. The proposed tenures albeit all
affordable, are otherwise appropriately distributed across the site in terms of siting considering
‘pepper-potting’. The Strategic Housing Officer seeks the securing of the affordable housing via
use of s106 agreement that:

. requires them to transfer any rented affordable units to a Registered Provider
. provide details of when the affordable housing is required
. includes provisions that require the affordable homes to be let or sold to people who are

in housing need and have a local connection. The local connection criteria used in the
agreement should match the Councils allocations policy.

. includes the requirement for an affordable housing scheme to be submitted prior to
commencement of the development that includes full details of the affordable housing on site.

DESIGN / CHARACTER

Between them the policies and guidance listed above relating to design seek that new
development is of an appropriate size, scale and design that is commensurate to the character
of the area in which it would be situated, whilst championing higher quality design to enhance
and improve the wider borough.

The proposals have been reviewed by the Urban Design Officer who raises no objection to the
proposals. They note that the revised proposals, which has followed on from a pre-application
enquiry and earlier design consultation in the lifetime of the application, is now a sympathetically
designed scheme that sits comfortably in the location and as such is supported on design
grounds. The Design Officer notes that the building lines are effective, active frontages are well-
located and levels of passive surveillance are good. They also comment that the proposals

OFFICIAL



Page 25

accommodate the various changes in topography well with a suitable hierarchy of streets, being
predominantly shared surface. The Design Officer notes the landscaped footway that bisects
the site along an easement to be a highlight of the scheme. It was also noted that the scale and
massing of dwellings reflects the immediate local area comprises of single and two storey
dwellings and is softened by stepping of the roofline to reflect levels. The architectural design
is considered to be clean and crisp with elevations of depth having good articulation taking
reference from a local contextual study, reinterpreting it in a contemporary way avoiding
pastiche. There have been clear efforts to ensure even on rear or side elevations that face the
public realm that there are interesting architectural details that enhance and provide features
within the streetscene, also providing windows that directly overlook public spaces or parking
areas, to ensure good visually activity. The indicated simple material palette is strong with subtle
variation in brick type and detailing with recessed areas and is considered to be effective.

At this time as the specific facing materials, windows, doors, wet verges, rainwater goods etc.
are yet to be confirmed suitably worded planning conditions are recommended to secure these
elements should approval be recommended. Subject to conditions it is considered that the
proposals are in compliance with the listed policies and guidance covering design and local
character.

LIVING CONDITIONS

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek to ensure all development is located and
designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface water
and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other
pollution which would unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or detrimentally
affect amenity or cause harm. Developers will be expected to minimise and mitigate the effects
of possible pollution arising from the development itself, or as a result of the development
(including additional traffic) during both the construction and the life of the development. Where
adequate mitigation cannot be provided, development will not normally be permitted.

With regard to residential amenity, during the course of the public consultation, concern was
raised that due to the land levels of the proposals and proximity to existing neighbouring form
that this could lead to privacy and loss of light issues due to overbearing development following
overdevelopment of the site that causes shadowing or overlooking as a result.

HOU13 Residential Standards of the SADPD sets out that housing development should
generally meet the standards for space between buildings as set out in Table 8.2 'Standards
for space between buildings' unless the design and layout of the scheme and its relationship to
the site and its characteristics provides an adequate degree of light and privacy between
buildings.

Table 8.2 is as follows:

OFFICIAL



Page 26

Position/height of building Standards for spatl::‘ :e:;e:yn::::::gs from the centre

1. Habitable room facing habitable room or facing non-residential buildings

e 18 metres front to front of buildings

Lo Sy ® 21 metres back to back of buildings
e 20 metres front to front of buildings
3 storeys or upwards o 24 metres plus 2.5 metres per additional storey back

to back of buildings

2. Habitable room facing non-habitable room
1 or 2 storeys > 14 metres
3 storeys or upwards e 25 metres per additional storey

3. Allowance for differences in level between buildings

All cases where 1 and 2 (above) are applied and

difference in level exceeds 2 metres P Add 2.5 metres fo distance

Each further 2 metres difference in level e  Add additional 2.5 metres per 2 metres difference in
level

8.63 A habitable room is any room in a house except the hall, stairs, landing, toilet, bathroom, and
kitchen, unless the kitchen is a kitchen diner.

8.64 The space criteria apply where the sole or principal window in the habitable room faces:

e inthe case of 1, another habitable room; or
e inthe case of 2, a blank wall or a wall that contains obscure glazing only.

The layout, orientation and distancing between each dwelling is considered to be acceptable
providing good levels of private external amenity space commensurate with the immediate
area. Internally the dwellings proposed are laid out in a pattern that either achieves the
recommended spatial standards above, or where they are at distances slightly lower than those
listed above (see below list where this applied for clarity), are staggered their siting, plan and
elevational layouts (placement of habitable room windows or form also staggered to avoid direct
views into rooms/gardens) so that they would not result in detrimental impacts on future
occupants amenity. The internal layout of the proposed development adequately allows for
adequate light to habitable rooms, privacy and would not result in overbearing or overlooking
impacts overall. Where there are lower distance standards for habitable rooms of living rooms,
kitchen/diners and bedrooms this is also considered acceptable as the majority of the plots
highlighted also have windows in at least 2no. elevations to allow for adequate light and amenity
and lessen overbearing impacts.

Block 1 — Block 12 = minimum 19m rear to rear

Block 2 — Block 11 = minimum 20m rear to rear

Block 3 — Block 11 = minimum 19m rear to rear

Block 3 — Block 4 = minimum 14m front habitable rooms to front non-habitable rooms
Block 4 — Block 10 = minimum 9.5m rear habitable room to blank wall (only partial due
to placement of first floor bedroom window)

OFFICIAL



Page 27

e Block 5 — Block 10 = minimum 9.5m rear habitable room to blank wall (only partial due
to placement of first floor bedroom window)

e Block 6 (Plot 12) — Block 7 = minimum 9.5m rear habitable room to blank wall (only
partial due to placement of first floor bedroom window), Plot 11 of Block 6 to Block 7 14m
is met.

e Block 9 — Block 10 — minimum 12.5m rear habitable room to black wall on bungalow
(only partial due to placement of first floor bedroom window)

Side windows are provided to those with side driveways to allow passive surveillance and
additional light into habitable rooms. This responds to the comments provided earlier in the
application lifespan from the police.

Due to the levels and the orientation and number of stories proposed for the development it is
not considered that as a result the existing satisfactory amenity relationship of existing
neighbours on Countess Road or Ivy Road are detrimentally impacted subject to the use of
planning conditions to secure appropriate landscaping. Externally the spatial distances
achieved between proposed dwellings and existing dwellings are as follows:
e Blocks 1 to 6 — dwellings on Ivy Road and Saint John the Evangelist Primary School =
all distance standards exceed or met
Block 6 — Bransdale Way = all distance standards exceed or met
Block 7 — Bransdale Way = all distance standards exceed or met
Block 8 — Bransdale Way = all distance standards exceed or met
Block 8 — Countess Road = minimum 11m side blank wall to rear elevation (staggered)
Block 9 — Countess Road = minimum 21m front to rear habitable room windows
(Countess Road dwellings set at higher topographical level)
Block 11 — Countess Road = minimum 20m side to rear habitable rooms
e Block 12 — Countess Road = minimum 21m front to rear habitable room windows
(Countess Road dwellings set at higher topographical level)
e Block 13 —Countess Road = minimum 13m from blank wall to rear habitable room
windows (Countess Road dwellings set at higher topographical level).

Whilst spatial distances between buildings are considered to be acceptable to ensure ongoing
amenity protection from privacy, overlooking and overdevelopment it is considered reasonable
in this instance to seek the removal of Classes A to E of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). This is also with
regards to the proposed density.

In terms of contamination and pollution, the application is supported by a Phase | and Phase Il
Ground Assessment Appraisal. The Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the proposals
and supporting documents and raises no objections. In respect of contaminated land they noted
that ‘The reports, Sutcliffe reference 31470-SUT-ZZ-00-RP-G-701-0001, dated January 2021
and Sutcliffe reference 31470-SUT-ZZ-00-RP-G-702-0002, dated July 2021, submitted in
support of the application recommend that a remedial strategy be developed.” The
Environmental Health officer noted that they were in agreement with that report and strategy
but ‘have several observations and comments regarding the reports:

-References to CLR11 and the null hypothesis test were made within the report. These were
superseded in 2020 by Land Contamination Risk Management (LCRM) and the Professional
guidance: Comparing soil contamination data with a critical concentration.

OFFICIAL


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/land-contamination-risk-management-lcrm
https://www.claire.co.uk/component/phocadownload/category/9-other-cl-aire-documents%3Fdownload%3D433:gasworks-profile-d-producer-gas-plants

Page 28

-It is noted that site investigation works were pre demolition, did not cover the full extent of
proposed residential development and the locations may not have been in areas of particular
sensitivity, such as gardens. Given the identified low risk the site presents, these matters can
be addressed either before the development of a remedial strategy or as part of enabling works
within the strategy.

-A ground gas risk assessment was undertaken, and gas protection measures have been
recommended. It is noted that the made ground encountered was low in organics (other than
the presence of cinder and natural peat, though these locations were not monitored for gas). It
is also noted that all the response zones were below the made ground.

Reference was made to a site wide strip of soil. The sustainability of this proposal should be
considered given the limited contamination identified to date.’

Following on from this the Environmental Health team seek the use of planning conditions to
secure the following of which the details are not presently within the supporting documents and
are required but not on a prior to determination basis: Sustainable Travel Plan submission on
a prior to first occupation basis to secure sustainable travel methods uptake; Prior to
commencement Phase Il ground investigation report with remediation strategy if applicable;
prior to first occupation Verification Report submission following on from any approved
Remediation Strategy; Prior to importation to site basis any new soil forming materials testing
evidence submission plus any relevant verification information and previously undiscovered
contaminated land. In addition to this informatives are recommended to be attached to any
approval of the development covering construction hours and duty to adhere to the regulations
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

The Environmental Health officer also requested that an ultra-low emission boiler per dwelling,
1no. electric vehicle charging point location and specification to be confirmed via planning
condition on a prior to occupation basis, 10% capacity electric vehicle charging point provision
for apartments with location and specification secured via planning condition. Notwithstanding
this as these elements are covered by Building Regulations, it is not considered these
recommended conditions would meet the tests for the use of planning conditions as they do
not specifically coincide with any planning policies or guidance adopted at the moment and to
this end will not be attached as a planning condition as this would be unnecessary duplication.

The Environmental Health officer also recommended for the following informatives be attached
to any decision notice to secure pile foundations details and a site specific dust management
plan. On this occasion as it is a major development surrounded by sensitive residential
development it is considered that these instead should be securd by condition to ensure the
protection of amenity covering dust, noise and vibration etc. during the construction period of
the development. In addition following comments from the police it is also considered sensible
to secure external lighting scheme via planning condition from the development from a safety
perspective and also with regards to protecting amenity from external light sources for future
and neighbouring occupants.

The proposals are considered to be in compliance with the listed policies and guidance
regarding residential amenity and pollution control subject to the use of conditions attached to
any approval of the development.

HIGHWAYS

OFFICIAL



Page 29

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that new development deliver safe,
sustainable, high quality, integrated transport systems that encourage a modal shift away from
car travel to public transport, cycling and walking; supportive of the needs of residents and
businesses and preparing for carbon free modes of transport.

During the course of the application concerns were raised by members of the public regarding
a lack of parking for the dwellings on site, detrimental impacts on highways safety and flow as
a result of additional vehicle movements due to additional occupants at the site and a need for
implementation of traffic calming and speed reduction at the development in the interests of
wider area users such as the school. Concern was also raised at a loss of parking for the
residents of no. 61-69 Countess Road which as a result of the development is stated there will
be a reduction in off-road parking available for them.

Blocks 1 — 3 will have new dropped kerb accesses formed off vy Road leading to their individual
driveways between existing trees. As part of the development the existing level access to Ivy
Road will be slightly re-aligned to provide access to shared surface driveway leading to the
individual driveways of Blocks 4 — 6. To the west the existing access from Countess Road will
be re-utilised and it is proposed that the arms of the highway running north and south leading
to Blocks 7-9 and Blocks 11-13 will become an adopted highways surface. From this adopted
roadway will be areas of shared surface of different material texture leading to the individual
driveways or shared surface parking for the relevant plots. The Highways Officer raised no
issue to these accesses noting that swept paths provided show adequate access and tracking
for all vehicles including delivery/service vehicles and also adequate siting of bin stores. They
did note that an s184 licence would be required separate to planning to form the accesses onto
the surrounding adopted highways network. A condition requiring a Construction Management
Plan to be submitted is recommended to protect the highways network during the construction
stage of the development.

The following parking requirements apply to this development:

-One bedroom dwelling — 1no. space

-Two bedroom dwelling — 2no. spaces

-Three+ bedroom dwelling — 2no. spaces

For surface parking a minimum dimensioned area of 4.8 x 2.5m is required and where this leads
onto a road or shared manoeuvring surface the aisle width required would be 6.9m for two-way
routes and 6m for one-way routes. In addition to this 1no. secure cycle parking space per
dwelling is also recommended.

In respect of these minimum requirements and recommendations all of these have been met
as part of the revised plans and it is noted there is a great improvement on the siting and
location of surface vehicle and cycle parking provision compared with the original scheme. The
improvements include less frontage vehicle parking which allows the architecture of the
dwellings and their landscaping to be the prominent form on site rather than parked vehicles
through the use of tucked away side parking and overlooked cycle parking facilities surrounded
by landscaping.

Notwithstanding comments received from the public the Highways Officer has confirmed they
have no objection to the proposals subject to the use of conditions. Taking into account the
small-scale nature of the proposals and noting that the number of dwellings on this site is
reduced and form larger family units, it is not anticipated that there would be a detrimental

OFFICIAL



Page 30

impact on the surrounding highways network in terms of trip rates and additional vehicles as a
result of the development. The site is already well-connected to the surrounding Macclesfield
settlement with pavements to either side of Countess Road and lvy Road, to this end no
improvements to pedestrian infrastructure are warranted either. No objections have been raised
by the Public Right of Way Officer either noting the retention of the adopted highways footpath
from lvy Road to Countess Road (not a PROW) and upgrading as a result of the development.

As part of the works several garages are to be removed to facilitate the development. The
garages to the most northernly corner were previous used and access by the residents of 25-
37 Countess Road, 7no. properties total. The garages and parking areas are within the
applicant’'s ownership and management area. The proposed development includes 7no.
replacement surface parking spaces for these properties retaining the existing access point
albeit securing further details of the gate. It is proposed that the applicant will continue to
maintain these 7no. parking spaces. Overall it is considered the impact on the highways
network as a result of the proposed development will be limited. The number of parking spaces
per property meets the recommended parking provision for the area, noting there is also
unrestricted parking available and utilised on Countess Road. It is recommended that details of
the access gate to this parking area is secured by condition.

Taking into account the above it is considered that the development is in compliance with local
and national planning policies and guidance covering highways safety and parking subject to
conditions relating to parking (vehicle and cycle) and access.

BIODIVERSITY AND GEODIVERSITY

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that all development must aim to positively
contribute to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity and should
not negatively affect these interests. Where appropriate, conditions will be put in place to make
sure appropriate monitoring is undertaken and make sure mitigation, compensation and
offsetting is effective.

During the course of the application concern was raised by the public at the loss of habitats and
nature from the site as a result of the development including loss of some trees.

The application is supported by various bat and habitat surveys, Biodiversity Impact
Assessments, Tree Surveys and Assessments. The application has been reviewed by the
Nature Conservation Officer who considers that whilst the bat and bird boxes proposed on
Landscape General Arrangements plan Rev. H are acceptable and should be installed on a
prior to first occupation basis and retained thereafter. The DEFRA Biodiversity Metric indicates
a loss of 0.94 Biodiversity Units (-39.36%). In order to comply with the requirements of policy
SE3 of the CELPS off-site habitat creation would be required (with the applicant ideally working
in partnership with a suitable habitat provider to deliver sufficient biodiversity units to achieve a
net gain)

This would require a financial contributuon to secure off-site habitat creation (net gain) at 0.94
Biodiversity Units (alongside on-site bat/bird enhancement features) via purchasing of such
units from a suitable habitat provider. £16,980 per habitat unit, plus Council administration fee
of £1,200 per habitat unit ((16,980 x 0.94) + (1,200 x 0.94)) = £15,961.20 + £1,128 =

OFFICIAL



Page 31

£17,089.20. The direction of spend for the off-site habitat creation will be confirmed by way of
committee update.

Subject to securing this the proposals would be in compliance with the listed policies and
guidance covering Nature Conservation, biodiversity and geodiversity.

TREES, HEDGEROWS AND LANDSCAPE CHARACTER

The listed policies and guidance above seek to protect the continued health and life expectancy
of trees, hedgerows or woodlands and where loss of or threat to them is proposed development
will not normally be permitted unless there are clear overriding reasons for allowing
development and that there are no suitable alternatives. Where such impacts are unavoidable,
development proposals must satisfactorily demonstrate a new environmental gain by
appropriate mitigation, compensation or offsetting. The policies and guidance also seek that all
development should conserve the landscape character and quality and should where possible,
enhance and effectively manage the historic, natural and man-made landscape features that
contribute to local distinctiveness of both rural and urban landscapes.

To Ilvy Road is an established street tree line and the southern boundary of the site also has a
tree line to Bransdale Way. These trees are not formally protected, but do provide positive
visual relief and softening of the streetscene. The application is supported by a Tree Survey
Schedule, Arboricultural Method Statement and several other Site and Landscaping Plans.
Trees throughout the site, to boundaries and grass verges comprise mature: Norway maple;
Sycamore; Cherry; Whitebeam; Lawsons Cypress; Holly; Mahonia; Cypress and Lime.

The Forestry Officer has reviewed the proposals and noted that a full AlA in accordance with
BS5837.2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction does not support the
application. The documents that do support it does not provide the level of information normally
expected to assess the impacts of development upon trees. During the course of the
application the Forestry Officer has noticed that the Proposed Site Plans and associated
Landscaping Layouts indicate that 13no. trees are scheduled for removal due to their quality
and to facilitate the development: 2no. Norway Maple, 3no.Cherry, 2no. Whitebeam, Holly,
Mahonia, Cypress and 3no. Wild Cherry. Also, they sought a plot switch of block 8 to allow for
further distancing from the trees to the west, so to avoid the feeling of over-dominant trees or
encourage felling or pruning as a result of the development, which has been actioned in the
revised proposals.

In terms of trees sought for removal, it was noticed from site visit that some of this had already
taken place prior to the determination of the application. The Forestry Officer notes that the
removed trees are of moderate quality B category trees, within the site edged red. They noted
‘Ordinarily confirmation regards the number and quality of tree removals would be expected in
advance of determination to ensure that adequate mitigation is provided for any accepted tree
loss in accordance with Policy SE5. Offsite trees along the southwest boundary and a number
of trees along lvy Lane remain, although no evaluation of the impact of the proposal on these
trees has been submitted in terms of above ground relationships with the development,
construction in the RPAs, the impacts of levels changes, drainage or visibility splays for access,
or any pruning requirements.’

OFFICIAL



Page 32

Further to this the Forestry Officer notes that Group G3 high quality A category Lime trees
located off-site along Bransdale Way are considered to make an important contribution to the
visual amenity of the area. They note that further to previous comments that the proximity of
block 8 to these trees has been increased providing a distance of 8m from the stem centre of
these 15m high trees, which though improved is still considered close with regards to their
future growth potential. It was further noted that opportunities exist to provide greater separation
between the development and trees along Bransdale Way, although it is accepted that the
relationship is not dissimilar to that which existed previously with the demolished dwellings,
therefore on balance the layout is considered to be broadly defendable. The Forestry Officer
noted the Nature Conservation Officers comments regarding biodiversity loss arising from the
development as calculated in the BNG assessment and the provision via planning
obligation/financial contribution to secure off-site habitat creation. The Forestry Officer notes it
is not clear if the BNG calculations take into account the loss of trees formerly present and
removed prior to determination. Losses occurred should be mitigated for either on or off-site to
demonstrate Environmental Net Gain. No issues are raised at the other trees set for retention
as part of the proposed development as this would continue the visual green and tree lined
aesthetic of both lvy Road and Bransdale Way. Overall, the Forestry Officer does not object to
the scheme subject to conditions relating to a tree protection plan and arboricultural method
statement.

In general, no issue is raised as to the proposed landscaping of the site of which detailed
planting, boundary treatment, hard-surfacing, levels and retaining walls details have been
provided. The site will still benefit from the existing street tree framing and the soft landscaping
proposed is commensurate with the domestic style of landscaping within this immediate area.
The adopted footway through the centre of the site will benefit the most from the development
with wildflower and bulb planting and a more soft, managed aesthetic to it creating a pleasant
pedestrian connection to housing to the west. The Urban Design Officer indicated this as a
highlight of the scheme. As the scheme has been amended over time to carefully lay out
hardstanding for parking to the side of dwellings to promote architecture and soft landscaping
as the key visuals for the site, it is recommended that permitted development rights for the
insertion of additional or amended boundary treatments, new vehicular accesses and
hardstanding are removed from each dwelling for any approval issued, to ensure a sensitive
development with a clear architectural and landscape narrative. Subject to the use of conditions
and informatives it is considered that the proposals are in compliance with the listed policies
and guidance covering landscaping and trees.

FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that new developments must integrate
measures for sustainable water management to reduce flood risk, avoid an impact on water
guality and quantity within the borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health
and recreation. New development must be designed to be safe, taking into account the lifetime
of the development and the need to adapt to climate change, seeking improvements to current
surface water drainage network and be designed to manage surface water noting it is not
sustainable to drain surface water to public sewers. New development should incorporate water
efficiency measures.

An existing foul water sewer easement runs across the site from east to west along the adopted
footway from lvy Road to Countess Road and then across and under Ivy Road and a surface

OFFICIAL



Page 33

water sewer easement also from north to south under the tree line to lvy Road and around the
corner to Bransdale Way. It is noted that the government flood risk map shows that part of the
site has a medium and high risk of surface water flooding.

The application is supported by a Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Assessment. This has
been reviewed by United Utilities (UU) and the LLFA who do not object subject to the
submission of a more detailed strategy for foul and surface water, and finished floor levels being
a minimum of 300mm above the surrounding ground level to ensure safety from surface water
flooding. The LLFA also queried the proposed drainage strategy usage of attenuation tanks
and discharge routes into culverted watercourses and if these go through third party land. The
LLFA sought the use of CCTV surveys of any outlets that watercourses are to discharge into
and confirmation of new and existing pipework. With this said there were previously dwellings
on the site and albeit in a different layout they were able to successfully drain into surrounding
networks etc. To this end it is considered that subject to the use of conditions to secure the
submission of a detailed surface and foul water drainage strategy taking into account comments
from the LLFA and UU that the development is in compliance with the relevant policies and
guidance on this subject.

OPEN SPACE

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek to protect and enhance existing areas of
Protected Open Space. The site includes some areas highlighted in policy constraints mapping
as Protected Open Space.

The relevant area within is included in the Council’s Open Space Assessments (OSA) as site
WE29 and is therefore classed as open space and protected by local plan policies SE6 and
RECL1. The description given for WE29 is ‘Bungalows south of Ivy House — Site Description —
Grass verges and amenity space provided for the bungalows — total area — 0.15ha — overall
guality award — good — reviewed 21st August 2017’

Policy SE6 of the CELPS states ‘Cheshire East aims to deliver a good quality, and accessible
network of green spaces for people to enjoy, providing for healthy recreation and biodiversity
and continuing to provide a range of social, economic and health benefits. This will be done by:
4. Strengthening the contribution that sport and playing fields, open space and recreation
facilities make to Cheshire East’s green infrastructure network by requiring all development to:
i. Protect and enhance existing open spaces and sport and recreation facilities;(66)

ii. Encourage multiple use and improvements to their quality;

iii. Provide adequate open space (as outlined in Table 13.1);

iv. Contribute to the provision of outdoor sports facilities in line with Policy SC 2;

v. Create or add to the networks of multi-functional Green Infrastructure;

vi. Secure new provision to help address identified shortages in existing open space
provision, both in quantity, quality and accessibility;

vii. Locate open space facilities in appropriate locations, preferably within developments;

and

viii. Promote linkages between new development and surrounding recreational networks,
communities, and facilities.’

Policy REC1 of the SADPD states ‘1. Development proposals that involve the loss of open
space, as defined in Criterion 2 below, will not be permitted unless: i. an assessment has been

OFFICIAL



Page 34

undertaken that has clearly shown the open space is surplus to requirements; or ii. it would be
replaced by equivalent or better open space in terms of quantity and quality and it is in a suitable
location; or iii. the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits
of which clearly outweigh the loss. 2. The types of open space to which this policy applies
includes: existing areas of open space shown on the adopted policies map, such as formal town
parks, playing fields, pitches and courts, play areas, allotments and amenity open space; other
incidental open spaces, which are too small to be shown on the adopted policies map, but which
are of public value for informal recreation or visual amenity; and open spaces provided through
new development yet to be shown on the adopted policies map.’

Concern was raised by the Open Space Officer regarding the loss in its entirety of this area of
open space without consideration of the loss or whether mitigation in the form of securing other
open space off site has been investigated. They noted that the highlighted areas of Protected
Open Space ‘were included along Ivy Road as it was felt that together with open space in the
area, they made a significant contribution to the public realm and amenity of the area’. The
Open Space Officer noted that the immediate locality is a busy area close to schools and shops
with lots of traffic and the green spaces running along this road provided a more attractive
environment and access to green space. They further noted that the Weston estate to the east
of lvy Road is a dense area of housing, with long acknowledged deficiencies in open spaces of
all types as such smaller areas such as those allocated on this site are important in contextual
setting, also noting the connecting link from Countess Road.

From the description provided in the OSA for the Protected Open Space on site, it is clear that
these were directly for the bungalows that once stood on the site and for the amenity of its
former residents. It Is also clear that the spaces were not playing pitches or playgrounds of any
kind noting the various signage once affixed to the bungalows discouraging ball games.
However, as these bungalows have now been demolished it is logical to conclude that the
functional value of these spaces has dissolved, which provides positive weight in argument for
their loss. The size of existing Protected Open Space at the site marked on GIS constraints
mapping amounts to 3853sqm or 0.38ha.

As part of the proposals 3550 sgm or 0.355ha of private external amenity space and 1070sgm
or 0.107ha of amenity/public open spaces will be created.

The Open Space Officer noted that the proposed loss in part may be offset by a LAP (Local
Area of Play) or similar, around the link with Countess Road which may help integrate the new
scheme with surrounding community. It was confirmed that if on site open space provision was
lost in its entirety or provided in part that the following commuted sums (financial contributions)
to fund off-site open space areas/projects would be required with directed spend towards Public
Open Space and Outdoor Sport/Recreational Open Space at Weston Playing Field and Play
Area (to west of site) taking into account areas of amenity/public open space proposed as part
of the new residential development. This is as taken from the S106 SPD.

Open Space contribution

£3,000 per family dwelling or £1,500 per bedspace for apartments this would equate to the
following:

23no. family dwellings x £3,000 = £69,000

6no. one bedroom, two person apartments = 12no. bedspaces x £1,500 = £18,000.

Total open space off-site financial contribution required = £87,000.

OFFICIAL



Page 35

Outdoor sport and recreation contribution

In respect of Outdoor sports and recreation the following financial contribution towards off-site
project would be generated and therefore required as a result of the development.

23no. family dwellings x £1000 = £23,000.

6no. one bedroom, two person apartments = 6 x £500 = £3,000.

The total Outdoor sports and recreation off-site financial contribution required would therefore
equate to £26,000.

Notwithstanding the loss of Protected Open Space for the previous bungalows, it is considered
that as they no longer exist that the loss can be justified on this occasion as other areas of
public open space are provided that are an enhancement on the previous offer such as the
landscaped adopted footway between vy Road and Countess Road for the development which
achieves a better density, layout and design. It is also worth noting comparing the building
footprints of what previously existed on the site (block of flats, bungalows and garages) of
1683sgm and that proposed 1496sgm, that the built footprint on the site is actually less than
what previously existed and there are still areas of landscaping albeit in private domains. In
addition, the landscaping proposed retains the street trees and improvements in the layout of
the site amended during the application result in parking down the sides of properties which
help to still give the site an open, leafy feel which is a characteristic and reason why the open
spaces were protected and more generally that of lvy Road. The proposals also provide for
much needed affordable family housing including single storey bungalows and four bedroom
houses which bares positive weight in justifying loss in part of open space on the site. To
mitigate for the difference in the existing defined Protected Open Space and that proposed to
be provided as part of the development it is considered reasonable that financial
contribution/planning obligations are secured for the off-site projects highlighted. Subject to this
it is considered that, on balance, the proposals would adhere to local and national planning
policies and guidance on this subject.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Policy IN1 of the CELPS sets out that ‘2. The council will also require new and improved social
and community facilities, utilities infrastructure and other infrastructure to be provided in a timely
manner to meet the needs of new development as they arise so as to make a positive
contribution towards safeguarding and creating sustainable communities, promote social
inclusion and reduce deprivation.’

Policy INF2 of the CELPS explains that developer contributions will be sought to make sure
that the necessary physical, social, public realm, economic and green infrastructure is in place
to deliver development, which will be used to mitigate the adverse impacts of development
(including any cumulative impact). Such contributions will help facilitate the infrastructure
needed to support sustainable development.

Policy SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East sets out that ‘in order to achieve
sustainable development in Cheshire East, the following considerations to development will
apply. Development should wherever possible:

3. Contribute to the creation of sustainable communities;

OFFICIAL



Page 36

4. Provide appropriate infrastructure to meet the needs of the local community including:
education; health and social care; transport; communication technology; landscaping and open
space; sport and leisure; community facilities; water; waste water; and energy.’

Taking into account the proposals and these policies it is important to consider what impact the
development would have on these elements of infrastructure and local services or facilities.

Healthcare

NHS Estates were consulted on the proposals and confirmed that as a result of the additional
occupants generated from the development a financial contribution of £27,559 directed towards
Waters Green medical centre improvements, would be required to ensure sufficient healthcare
facilities for the additional occupants/residents generated from the development. The
breakdown of these calculations was summarised as follows.

There are six NHS GP practices within Macclesfield, all located within one building at the
Waters Green Medical Centre. Based on the current local population, the Waters Green
Medical Centre has sufficient capacity to manage currently registered patients. However, with
the known planned housing developments, the local population is predicted to increase by
approximately 17% over the next 10 years. In order to be able to continue to provide the current
high level of primary care services to the local population the six GP practices will be required
to review their current model of working. A model of ‘working at scale’ will be required, in which
the six GP practices work much more closely together to remove duplication and inefficiencies
from the primary care system. Even with modifications to the existing Waters Green Medical
Centre, it is anticipated that the GP practices and NHS Community Services will need to expand
out into an additional building within the next 10 years.

Given the above, the ICB therefore requests section 106 monies to support capital
improvements to the premises tied to the below formula (set at 2022 costs — requires inflation
for RPI as necessary).

No. of Beds Amount of Correlating Cost
Occupants

1 bed unit 1.4 persons £612 per 1 bed unit

2 bed unit 2.0 persons £875 per 2 bed unit

3 bed unit 2.8 persons £1,225 per 3 bed unit

4 bed unit 3.5 persons £1,531 per 4 bed unit

5 bed unit 4.8 persons £2,100 per 5 bed unit

1 bed unitx 6 =£ 3,672
2 bed unitx 14 =£ 12,250
3 bedunitx7=£ 8,575
4 bed unit x 2= £ 3,062

Total: £ 27,559
Education

The Council’s Education Officer was consulted on the proposals and confirmed that as a result
of the additional occupants generated from the development a financial contribution of

OFFICIAL



Page 37

£49,028.07 would be required to ensure sufficient education facilities/secondary education
places for the additional occupants/residents generated from the development. The breakdown
of these calculations was summarised as follows, only 23no. of the 29no. dwellings are included
as the remaining 6no. one bedroom flats are not considered as family dwellings that would
generate an education need.

‘The development of applicable 23 dwellings is expected to generate:

4 - Primary children (23x 0.19)
3 - Secondary children (23 x 0.15)
0 - SEN children (23 x 0.51 x 0.023%)

The development is expected to impact on primary and secondary school places in the locality.
Contributions which have been negotiated on other developments are factored into the
forecasts both in terms of the increased pupil numbers and the increased capacity at primary
and secondary schools in the area because of agreed financial contributions. The analysis
undertaken has identified that a shortfall of primary and secondary school places remains.

The Service acknowledges that this is an existing concern, however the 4 secondary age
children expected from the Ivy House, Ivy Road, Macclesfield application will exacerbate the
shortfall.

Special Education provision within Cheshire East Council currently has a shortage of places
available with at present over 47% of pupils educated outside of the Borough. The Service
acknowledges that this is an existing concern.

To alleviate forecast pressures, the following contributions would be required:
4 x £17,959 x 0.91 = £ 49,028.07 (Secondary)
Total education contribution: £ 49,028.07.°

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Viability

Policy GEN7 Recovery of planning obligations reduced on viability grounds of the SADPD
states ‘1. Development proposals should meet all relevant planning obligations required by local
plan policy. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate to the council whether particular
circumstances justify the need for a viability assessment at the application stage.

2. Where the council has agreed to reduce required planning obligations on the grounds of
viability, the applicant must enter a legal agreement that enables the council to review an
agreed viability assessment against future trigger points, with the aim of recovering all or part
of the reduced planning obligations should a new assessment indicate that profits are higher
than the normal developer returns already accounted for in the agreed viability assessment and
the council considers the reduced obligation can no longer be justified on viability grounds. The
underlying principle being to prioritise the use of any higher than anticipated returns, so that
they are used in the first instance to deliver policy requirements that were previously determined
not to be deliverable before being considered as an additional profit return to the developer.

OFFICIAL



Page 38

3. The details of the reduced planning obligation will be recorded in the legal agreement
together with the form or nature that any recovery of obligation will take. These obligations
should comply with national regulations on planning obligations.

4. The council will refuse planning applications where applicants request the reduction of
planning obligations on viability grounds but have not agreed a legal agreement that enables
these planning obligations to be reviewed and recovered, should a proposal deliver higher
returns than the normal developer profit already accounted for in the agreed viability
assessment.’

Taking into account the above details, subject to the securing of the following financial
contributions, there is no objection from nature conservation, open space, outdoor sport and
recreation, NHS healthcare and education perspectives.

- Public Open Space - £87,000

- Outdoor sport and recreation - £26,000

- Education - £49,028.07

- NHS Estates - £27,559

- Total confirmed financial contributions (not including biodiversity units — see below) =

£183,587.07

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states ‘Where up-to-date policies have set out the contributions
expected from development, planning applications that comply with them should be assumed
to be viable. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether particular circumstances justify the
need for a viability assessment at the application stage. The weight to be given to a viability
assessment is a matter for the decision maker, having regard to all the circumstances in the
case, including whether the plan and the viability evidence underpinning it is up to date, and
any change in site circumstances since the plan was brought into force. All viability
assessments, including any undertaken at the plan-making stage, should reflect the
recommended approach in national planning guidance, including standardised inputs, and
should be made publicly available.’

Further to this, it is confirmed that at this time all of the relevant local plan policies are
considered up to date and the Council can confirm a housing land supply of well in excess of 5
years.

During the course of the application the applicant has submitted a Viability Appraisal in respect
of the development. The applicant’s also notes that there is such a defined and specified need
for the affordable housing in this area of Macclesfield, which is proposed at 100% provision by
a Registered Provider, on a site previously operated and owned for social housing by the
applicants, which is 70% in excess of policy requirements, that this is a material consideration
that bares significant positive weight in the non-delivery of financial contributions for other
facilities/services/considerations. It is noted that the applicants propose to seek grant funding
from Homes England to build the development, as such their appraisals take this into account.
They note that an application for grant funding can only be made to Homes England following
any planning application being approved. The applicant states that the Homes England funding
expected is estimated to be a maximum of £1,305,000 @ £45,000 per dwelling. The applicants
also state they operate as a ‘not for profit' body where any surpluses generated are reinvested
into the provision of affordable housing. To this end the requirement for viability assessment
was triggered as per GEN7.

OFFICIAL



Page 39

The applicants original Viability Appraisal (VA) was submitted in November 2022 and concluded
that based on a 100% affordable housing scheme there is a deficit upon completion of £124,720
as such there is no scope for them to provide the financial contributions requested towards
planning obligations. This appraisal however notes that if the development was a traditional
market housing scheme with the 30% affordable housing provision on site in line with policy
(9no. dwellings) that it would be possible to support the financial contributions requested
towards planning obligations. The applicant has since updated its viability information with
updated costs relating to the proposed development in August 2023.

The applicants Viability Appraisal work has been independently reviewed by a third party RICS
viability appraisal specialist on behalf of the LPA. The Independent Assessor (IA) considered
the following scenarios:

-Scenario 1 — Policy excess scheme, no contributions - proposed scheme of 29no. units
delivered as 100% affordable (inclusive of grant funding) and no s106 contributions.

-Scenario 2 — Policy compliant scheme - scheme delivered on a policy compliant basis to
include 9 affordable (30%) units without grant funding and a sum of £183,587 towards s106
contributions.

- Scenario 3 - Policy excess scheme, plus contributions — proposed scheme of 29no. units
delivered as 100% affordable (inclusive of grant funding) and a sum of £183,587 towards s106
contributions.

The benchmark land value (BLV) for the site was assumed and adopted at £660,000.

The 1A concluded they agreed with the rise in costs associated with the build overall and
concluded that none of the above scenarios were viable based on the information provided.

It should also be noted that the Viability Appraisal does not include or refer to the required
Nature Conservation financial contribution to secure off-site habitat creation which was only
confirmed after the viability work was completed. As noted above a further £17,089.20 is
required for off-site habitat creation.

In response to this the applicant has confirmed that they will not know the exact amount until
the construction cost is known following a competitive tender. To assist with viability, a CME
[Continuous Market Engagement] bid for grant funding will be submitted to Homes England
once they know the exact construction cost. Internal subsidy is available, and if required,
approval from Peaks & Plains Board will be applied for. Budget has been allocated to this
development in the Trust's Business Plan at a higher build cost than that identified as
appropriate by the Independent Assessor.

In summary, the viability information provided has been tested independently, and the three
considered scenarios for residential development on this site have all been found to be not
viable. However, this is a brownfield site, which has been cleared of its previous residential
development, is owned by the applicant and is in need of redevelopment. In the current
application we have a willing applicant (a Registered Provider of affordable housing), who is
prepared to bring the development of this brownfield site forward with a 100% affordable
housing scheme, in full knowledge of the viability issues surrounding the site, and with a budget
in place at the very top end of the anticipated build cost parameters.

It is therefore considered that the provision of 100% affordable housing of high design quality
and layout, which includes four bed two storey houses, two bed single storey bungalows, two

OFFICIAL



Page 40

and three bed houses, and one bed apartments which are in high social need, on a site owned
and operated by a Registered Provider, outweighs the lack of policy compliant financial
contributions in this case.

Policy GEN7 of the SADPD explains that where the council has agreed to reduce required
planning obligations on the grounds of viability, the applicant must enter a legal agreement that
enables the council to review an agreed viability assessment against future trigger points, with
the aim of recovering all or part of the reduced planning obligations should a new assessment
indicate that profits are higher than the normal developer returns already accounted for in the
agreed viability assessment and the council considers the reduced obligation can no longer be
justified on viability grounds. Given the uncertainties around build costs this provides, this is
considered to be appropriate in this case.

It is therefore recommended that a s106 agreement with the following Heads of Terms is
required:

e Provision of 100% affordable housing

e Review of viability
These requirements are considered to be necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms, are directly related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably related
in scale and kind to the development.

Representations

The comments received in representation have been largely considered with the preceding text,
however it is also noted that concerns were raised by the public about the protection and
damage of hedgerows, boundary treatments and properties as a result of the development.
Damage to property is a civil matter for consideration outside of the planning process.

CONCLUSION

Having regard to the viability issues surrounding this site and the need for affordable housing
of the types, mix and tenures proposed on a previously developed, recently residential site
within the Macclesfield settlement boundary, the lack of policy compliant financial contributions
is outweighed by these other material considerations in this case. The application is therefore
recommended for approval subject to the prior completion of a s106 agreement to secure the
affordable housing provision and a review of the viability of the scheme, and the following
conditions.

Conditions
1. Time limit - 3 years
2. Development in accordance with approved plans
3. Materials to be submitted.
4. Removal of Permitted Development rights - alterations, extensions and outbuildings
5. Removal of Permitted Development rights - hardstanding, driveways and boundary
treatments
6. Construction management plan to be submitted.
7. Parking to be provided
8. Details of the secure access gate to the 7no. supplementary neighbour parking spaces
9. Access to be provided
10.Management plan for shared surfaces including the central landscaped accessway

OFFICIAL



Page 41

11.Secure cycle parking details to be submitted

12.Bin storage details to be provided.

13. Pile foundations details to be submitted

14.Dust management plan to be submitted

15. Sustainable Travel Plan to be submitted

16.Phase Il ground investigation report with remediation strategy to be submitted

17.Verification Report to be submitted following on from any approved Remediation
Strategy;

18. Testing of imported soil

19.Bat and bird boxes to be implemented

20.Breeding bird survey to be submitted

21.Tree protection plan, tree retention plan and arboricultural method statement to be
submitted.

22.Implementation of landscaping scheme

23.Prior to occupation scheme of external lighting for private and public spaces.

24.Foul and surface water drainage strategy to be submitted

OFFICIAL



( av
: \
| Recreation =
> Ground .
|9 I"~ \
oA 3
S g 14 —
S
T
o Y
g | B
= A
— -
- "
e )
A u - \-
& :
0 * < /T
‘ AR = :
8 N
2, 3
T B ’
1 2 s .// -
: | |
L J .:J
ol | p
oY Recreation (22— 4
l' | Gfownd 3553 AP
= - wy
2 )
71/ o -l LAY o
¥ | HEL : NG
! [ <} ! U= =
f = ' S c :
"
A ; g
f ! §
g i i : :('.'- |
"1 N
V. ',I y Lst "
A\ / - —.—-b' I—

OFFICIAL

b



Page 43

OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

DRAWING NOT TO BE SCALED.
REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

1174

Plot No Type Tenure GIA No of No of Storeys Parking
Beds Occupants
Semi- Shared o
Plot 1 Detached Ownership 79m? 2 4 2 200% COUNTESS RO
Plot 2 Semi- Shared 79me 2 4 2 200% AD
Detached Ownership
Semi- Shared o
Plot 3 Detached Ownership 79m? 2 4 2 200%
Semi- Shared o
Plot 4 Detached Ownership 79m? 2 4 2 200% h
Plot 5 Semi- Affordable 79mz 2 4 2 200% —
Deta.ched Rent K ) i ) & loped Efnbankment ? K
Plot 6 Semi- Affordable 79m2 2 4 2 200% & | A
Detached Rent 20 ‘ 20
Semi- Shared o
Plot 7 Detached Ownership 93m? 8 5 2 200%
Semi- Shared 2 o
Plot 8 Detached Ownership 93m 8 5 2 200%
Plot 9 Semi- Shared 93me 3 5 2 200% g
Detached Ownership 5 —l| 22|22 23|23
Semi- Shared o (2] M 1w
Plot 10 Detached Ownership 93m? s 5 2 200% @ o1 K
f ®©
Plot 11 Semi- Affordable 117me 4 7 2 200% & hd ) :
Detached Rent Plot 21 Block 9 Plot 23 Drainage Route with Shared Sirf
Plot 12 Semi- Affordable 122m2 4 7 2 200% Plot 22 3m Easement ared Surface "
Detached Rent 21 Shared Surface
Plot 13 Apartment gzﬁzdable 51m2 1 2 1 oo | o N~ e | e A . _AR_ ] 29
/ H —! ip— T T
Plot 14 Apartment éfefg;dable 51m2 1 2 1 100% q 888 o AR *AH : Oog N1 7No. Supplementary
PI 1 Apartment Affordable PRLITETS - % h 8 I_| T Neigh/lfi F"arkirvg
* o 17
ot 15 ot 51m2 1 2 1 100% 2 _Fn ; &
Apartment Affordabl . . 5 ! ?
Plot 16 p Aifordable 51me 1 2 1 100% HBlock 7Plot 15 & 16 (/Ts\> ‘é | .
[}
Plot 17 Apartment Aiordable 51m? 1 2 " 100% s = - ] ’ ;9
Plot 18 Apartment Affordable O . ’ “ 100% Plot 13 & 14 é " C 17/10/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD o
Rent = e ! B 06/04/22 TM  Revised tenure allocation MD D
Plot 19 Semi- Shared 80m?2 2 4 2 200% = < i A 25/03/22 ™ Dre}wings updated following planners comments MD
Detached Ownership I ! recieved 18/02/2022
00 “J Cycle -§-
Semi- Shared o ]
Plot 20 Detached Ownership 93m* 8 ° 2 200% lﬁ_ﬂﬂ_ﬂ@ Store é
Plot 21 Apartment Affordable 79mz 2 4 2 200% 8 REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD_
Rent
I . I
Plot 22 Apartment Affordable 79m2 2 4 2 200% 4 | PROJECT
Rent \ AR | M_ELH f ( SO y SO i .
Plot 23 Apartment Aiordable 79m? 2 4 2 200% ny ] . AR-= i — T — Ivy ROad y M&CC'GSfle |d
\ [ = 1
Plot 24 Bungalow Affordable 62m? 2 3 1 200% \ 12 11 ] ’ V 310
Rent > ook 6 L =T | /Block 2 |
Semi- Affordable o Plot 11 I — '
Plot 25 o o oot 79m2 2 4 2 200% -’ Plot 1 ot B O | Plot 4] Plot 3 )
Semi- Affordable o ey I / 3.2
Plot 26 o o oot 79m2 2 4 2 200% = i R | o= a0 e 0l B | L | ::
Plot 27 Semi- Shared 93m2 3 5 2 200% v /) - 1" | | Ea
Detached Ownership // H I A =t | ! i
Semi- Shared o 7 i
Plot 28 Detached Ownership 93m? 8 5 2 200% \ P 7 *”M 6|6 515 : : :: : 1 | CLIENT .
Bungalow Affordable o = l——= = P k & Pl
Plot 29 Afor 62me 2 3 1 200% - ( = ‘ | — eaKks ains
[ / R { (poss '
J & ) & \ relocate) T.P.
*Single Storey Apartments - Block 7 AR @ Affordable Rent ’
Two Storey Overall ) Existing Access IVY ROAD
J i Realigned
~ Shared Ownership ealigne DRAWING
House Type / Tenure
Syummary of Schedule of Accommodation E
Type Area No. Parking
1b2p Apartments 51m2 6 200% SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
2b3p Bungalows 622 5 200% 1:500 @a2 ™ MD 23/11/2021
2b4p Houses 79m2 12 200%
3b5p Houses 93m?2 7 200%
e Rovees i - > BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
Total Units 29 No. Homes

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20014 1004
15 1:1 STATUS

1:50 im 2 3 4 5 6 7m 1:100 im 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 " 12 13 14 15

Planning

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - site.rvt




~ Topoi Wall

¥ 01 FF Level

@ Top of Wall +0.975m
5775

@ 01 FF Level +0.975m
3675

1:5
1:50

4800

2700

0

Back
1:100

m 2

Top of Wall +0.975m ~g~
5775

01 FF Level +0.975m ~gp7
3675

_Top of Wall ~gp

4800

01 FF Level ~ggp~

2700

00 GF Level ~ag~

0

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local
vernacular

Roofs: thin edge tile

Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
Metal clad

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

P

Ok yar=10)

comments
A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN‘ ‘ ‘CHKI“
PROJECT
lvy Road, Macclesfield {
CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 1 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/07/21

Left
1:100

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 1.rvt

3 4

5!6\10- 01 4 .IZI)R(A)Wli\IG‘INo REVISION
o Planning

JV O EETOA




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)
Block | House
Number| Type Level Area
Plot 1 2b4p 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
Plot 1 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.8 m2
79.5 me
f i . d '% . Plot 2 2bdp 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
] Plot 2 2bdp 01 FF Level 39.8 m2
‘ N 79.5 m?

o
Kitchen & Dining
13.7 m2

‘ ‘D]]’g—g‘ Ei‘

Bedroom 2 [
13.2 m2

lvy Road, Macclesfield

uUpP UP

: \ I
S
. : B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD
T.2m T2m Hall Hall comments P U
E D 4.0 m2 4.0 m2 .
A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD Q)
[ | Q
Living N Living REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('[)
14.8 m? Al
N PROJECT D
D ! K

N
[
| g S s B
|
Hall Hall
i

|

|

40m: | [0 || Be%g%@ 1 Be%g%@ 1 [
M ﬂ\ ] ] n - H- O]
o — - i e %—‘_%?U %—'_%? CLEENT

] “Jj L Peaks & Plains

Ground Floor First Floor Block 1 Floor Plans
1:100 1:100

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/02/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
- CEPE TP e e e et e ey e e ey e el » HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘HH 20-014 1010
1:50 1m a 9 4 ] g m 1:100 1m a 9 4 ] q 7 g 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 | STATUS

Planning

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 1.rvt




~o TopoiWal

¥ 01 FF Level

@ Top of Wall +1.875m
6675

@ 01 FF Level +0.975m
3675

1:5
1:50

4800

2700

0

Back

1:100

m 2

Top of Wall +1.875m ~g@”

6675

01 FF Level +0.975m ~gpr

3675

_Top of Wall ~gp

4800

01 FF Level ~ggp~

2700

00 GF Level ~ag~

0

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local
vernacular

Roofs: thin edge tile

Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
Metal clad

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

P

\Shyar=10]

comments
A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN‘ ‘ ‘CHKI“
PROJECT
lvy Road, Macclesfield {
CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 2 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/07/21

Left
1:100

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 2.rvt

1m

3 4

5!6\10- 01 4 .IZI)R(A)Wli\I%\Io REVISION
o Planning

Oy =704




1:5
1:50

=
ce)
| — oo o
Kitchen & Dining | 5 Kitchen & Dining
13.7 m2 —= 13.7 m2
e
= "I} el B
1.2m E > 1.2m D ii
m Living A m Living
14.8 mz /’z 14.8 mz
|
uP upP
Hall Hall
MAOW :L\\ 4.0 m?
E q j _— L ; ———

Ground Floor
1:100

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

4.0 m?

3
}

L]
N

Bedroom 2
13 2 m2

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block | House
Number| Type Level Area
Plot 3 2b4p 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
Plot 3 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.8 m2
79.5 me
Plot 4 2bdp 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
Plot 4 2bdp 01 FF Level 39.8 m2
79.5 m?

Hall T
4.0 m?

St
0.9 m?

Bedroom 1

i 13.3 m?

0.9 m?

J u

)

=

| 3 St
X

={ L]

Bedroom 1

13.3 m?

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

irst Floor

:100

im

wn

P 3

g 1

8 9 10

P:12020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x

Block 2.rvt

comments U
A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD Q)
«Q
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('D
PROJECT S
H (
lvy Road, Macclesfield @
CLIENT
Peaks & Plains
DRAWING
Block 2 Floor Plans
SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/02/21
BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20-014 1015
STATUS .
Planning




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

_ Top of Wall +1.500 ~g~
6300

" Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local
__ __ _vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
_Metal clad

g~ TopofWall | 1 [pn .
4800 ' |

- _ 01 FF Level +0.825 ~gr
01 FF Level 3525

o7 01 FF Level

2700

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

. comments
1 - 100 100 A 29/03/22 TM Fernestration amendments MD g?
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN‘ ‘ ‘CHKI“:!
D
PROJECT . o
lvy Road, Macclesfield O

@ Topof Wall +1.500
6300

CLIENT

__TopofWall o~ Peaks & Plains

4800

g 01FF Level +0.825
3525

_OiFFleel g
2700

- DRAWING

Block 3 Elevations

b g) Grould I_EveL+0.825

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 3.rvt

— — _ — — = — — = — | scae SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED | DATE
825 1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/07/21
I 0000 00 GF Level g | _
0
BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
B ack Left A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161406 7333
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
1 . 100 1 100 W: SV\:viv.bov;’l\:;r—esraZTer.ecr:Sku
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\ 20-014 1021
1m m 4 q 4 5 g 7 d q 10 1 2 3 4 STATUS .
Planning




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

fed

Area Schedule (GIA)
Block | House
Number| Type Level Area
Plot 5 2b4p 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
Plot 5 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.8 m?
79.5 m?
Plot 6 Plot 5 Plot 6
. T L . — L Plot 6 2bdp 00 GF Level 39.7 m2
D s pg_,—‘ 5@4 ﬁ ‘ ‘ ] Plot 6 2b4p 01FFLevel | 39.3m?
O 79.0 m?
=R N e SN n
=g WO IES = = ] =
.3 m?3
Kitchen & Dinin 100
@ B - lce) B PoYoom?
Kitchen & Dining E Bed 2
2 - edroom
tely | jé \ 132 ms
i NG e \
Y
1\:lm ! Hall B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD
D 6.1 m2 comments
@ T ﬂ; A 29/03/22 TM Fernestration amendments MD
—[— m
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD
Living PROJECT .
14.8 e lvy Road, Macclesfield

Bedroom 1

.
]
N
.

Living
4I—!Jal|2 —| Bedroom 1
0m 13.2 m2

¢ o
La3ovYeqa

.
[ = o | g ‘mi

| ‘ L | | . Peaks & Plains

Ground Floor First Floor

;

1:100 1:100 EAIW(SNi;k3 Floor Plans

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 23/02/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
- CEPE TP e e e et e ey e e ey e el » HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘HH 20-014 1020
1:50 1m a 9 4 ] g m 1:100 1m a 9 4 ] q 7 g 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 | STATUS

Planning

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 3.rvt




” TopofWall
4800

3300

Front
1:100

3300

_ _TopoiWal~r
4800

_ _ _ViFFlevd 9> _ _ _ _ _

2700

00GFlevel~r =
0

P:2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 4.rvt

15
1:50

Left
1:100

m

2

3 4 9 q

m

1:10Q

1

m 2

3

4

g

g

I

g

9

10

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4 15

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD my
A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amendment MD )

«Q
REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKDE'D
PROJECT N
lvy Road, Macclesfield
CLIENT
Peaks & Plains
DRAWING
Block 4 Elevations
SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @ A2 PC MD 09/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

20-014

1026

STATUS

Planning




p

1:5
1:50

2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs

Kitchen & Dining
15.3 m2

111/ |l

“OJ

itchen & Dinin
172 m?
m
@)
WC Hall
2.1 m2 6.3 m2

=
(.

5

B g

D” —

Living — |
|1 — 20.2 m2 IS ‘
[]
! ] i
Ground Floor
1:100
CEPE TP e e e et e ey e e ey e el

=]
—

%@

Bedroom 2

12.7m

St.
0.9 m?

oom 3

Bedroom 1

]
|
|
]

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block House
Number | Type Level Area
Plot 7 3b5p 01 FF Level 46.1 m?
Plot 7 3b5p 00 GF Level | 47.8m?
93.9 m?
Plot 8 3b5p 01 FF Level 47.5 m?
Plot 8 3b5p 00 GF Level | 46.4m?
94.0 m?

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

comments

A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment

REV. ‘ DATE

‘DRN.‘

MD

fed

‘CHKD

PROJECT

lvy Road, Macclesfield

oC o
o1 ovYed

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 4 Floor Plans

SCALE
1:100

SHEET SIZE
@A3

DRAWN
PC

CHECKED
MD

DATE

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

0161 406 7333

office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

A:

=m-d

JOB No

20-014

DRAWING No

1025

REVISION

1:100

St. T
ol w— El (R
] A — —
Bedroom 3 |
:| 7.9 m2
sl = =
— :
First Floor
1:100
0000 00000 0000000000 0 0 0
1m P 3 4 ! ¢ 1 g 9 10 i1 12 13 14 1

STATUS

Planning




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local
vernacular

Roofs: thin edge tile

Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
Metal clad

~ Topoi Wall
4800

7 O1FFlLevel
2700

9 00GF Level

comments

-
F ro nt R I g ht B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD
1

P

1 100 100 A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendments MD
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKI“
PROJECT ‘
lvy Road, Macclesfield

sviowr=10)

|2 B W |

CLIENT

— — — | Peaks & Plains

~” Topof Wall_
4800

DRAWING

— — — —| Block 5 Elevations

~” 01FF Level o ’ S
2700

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
s 2 | 1:100 @A3 PC MD 09/08/21

0 : o

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

B a c k L eft A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
: 0161 406 7333

T
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
1 : 100 1 : 100 W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
. HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH ERRRRRRRARR AR AR RRRRER AR R RRERAR R RAEEENY » HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH 20-014 1031
1:50 im 2 3 4 q g 7m 1:100) 1m 2 3 4 q q 7 g q 10 11 12 13 14 |5 | STATUS

Planning

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 5.rvt




p

Plot 10

Ir)
I —

T =

— I

q
T— |

1:5

2.2 @

Kitchen & Dining
16.4 m?

D

Kitchen & Dining
16.4 m?

o i N | ol
I |
H g = Hall | | Hal == g ﬂ

Ground Floor
1:100

1:50

im P 3 4

wn
(o))

2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x

Block 5.rv

Plot 10

I

[T ]

]
T

Bedroom 2

11.3 m?

IS

:

[ ]

-

1

Bedroom 1
13.5 m2

L ]

St

1.5m2

St

1.5 m?

]

Bedroom 3

7.5m2

I]

L L]

||

Bedroom 3
7.5 m2

[ ]

S

Bedroom 1
13.5 m2

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block | House
Number | Type Level Area
Plot 9 3b5p 01 FF Level 48.0 m?
Plot 9 3b5p 00 GF Level 46.4 m2
94.4 m?2
Plot 10 3b5p 01 FF Level 47.6 m?
Plot 10 3b5p 00 GF Level 46.4 m2
94.0 m?

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

1:100

First Floor
1:100
HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH

comments U
A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendments MD Q)
«Q
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('D
PROJECT ol
lvy Road, Macclesfield ‘“
CLIENT
Peaks & Plains
DRAWING
Block 5 Floor Plans
SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 09/08/21
BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20-014 1030
STATUS .
Planning




2700

b 90 GF Level

0

5100

2700

w7 90 GF Level

0

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 6 alternative option.rvt

15
1:50

© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

m

3

g

7

1

2

4

g

g

1

Walls: red brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

\>4

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD
A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amendment MD
«Q
REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD.
PROJECT

lvy Road, Macclesfield

by J

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 6 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @np2 PC MD 10/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

20-014 1036

STATUS
Planning




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
d BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER

u \—‘ ‘ \:’ D MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN

mo

CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

N Bedroom 3 E %2?,2?“

11.6 m3
REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.

T F

GHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE
S DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNGTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
E_'—‘ SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS
1
i i — —

LI ] __i B Area Schedule (GIA)
A
E edroom 4 B|Ock House
| Bedroom 2 - 7.6 m? Number | Type Level Area
11.2 m? =Landing J L
T 2 :

I / 50m2 | T m ’7 L%f;dnlj?g Plot 11 4b7p 01 FF Level 60.6 m2
. - : Plot 11 4b7p 00 GF Level | 56.1 m2
" ] ] j 116.7 m2
[ I :@CZ N N Plot 12 4b7p 01 FF Level | 63.2m?
= ]Qedroom 3 j Bedroo Plot 12 47p | 00GFLevel | 584m
g N 11.6 md 11.3 121.6 m2

Bedroom 1 j j

_ 3.7 m2 |t :| :|

[

First Floor |

fed

1< o
a3 9vYeqa

1 100 B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD
comments
—— %Ci_ A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD
J REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD
PROJECT
— @ lvy Road, Macclesfield
iving Room Jj}
19.3 mz
CLIENT
{ J Peaks & Plains
. \& @ ]
Nﬁ/% m 1 Living|Room g = ]ﬂl DRAWING
% oy K'tCheéT.'n@ Block 6 Floor Plans
| H
D |
Kitchen & Dining — 4 -
23.8 m?
| )

[ ] —‘ \ L @ SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE

[ ] I | 1:100 @A3 PC MD 10/08/21

1 =3

J - | |

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

G ro u n d FI oo r A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
: 0161 406 7333

T:
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
1 100 W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
- HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH RERRERERERRARRRRRRRRERY » HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘HH 20-014 1035
1:50 1m a 9 4 ] g m 1:100 1m a 9 4 ] f 7 g 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 | STATUS

Planning

P:12020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 6 alternative option.rv




g7 Topof Wall _
5400

7 01 FF Level
3000

> OQ GE Level
0

© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Front
1:100

” TopofWall
5400

~@” 01FFLevel |
3000

. (@ GE Level
0

Back
1:100

P:2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 7.rvt

m 2

4

10

Walls: buff/pink brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

Obs. - Obscured Glazing

\>4

A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amendment MD g
«Q
REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD.ﬂ
¢
PROJECT (e

lvy Road, Macclesfield

@)

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 7 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @np2 PC MD 02/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

5!580-0 1 4 [‘)IR/-\OWII\I4G.I\ii) REVISION

Planning




© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

65 abed

Area Schedule (GIA)
Block Number | House Type |  Level | Area
Plot 13 \ 1b2b | O0GFlLevel | 516m2
51.6 m?
Plot 14 1b2b 01 FF Level 55.3 m?
Plot 14 1b2b 00 GF Level 3.0 m?
58.3 m?
Plot 15 1b2b 00 GF Level 51.6 m?
51.6 m2
Plot 13 W Plot 14 Plot 16 1b2b 01 FF Level 55.5 m?
=== Plot 15 Plot 17 — ) Plot 16 Plot 18 Plot 16 1h2b 00 GF Level 53505?;
o N I o
D[ Hm HW [] A A Plot 17 1b2b 00 GF Level 51.5 m?
[ [ Bedroom - )Etr;qz / Oﬁtr;]z 51.5 m2
14.0 m?

] ] Plot 18 1b2b 01 FF Level 50.0 m?
N Bedroom [ Bedroom [ Plot 18 b2b 00GFLevel | 3.0me
[ | [1] = = 53.0 m?

_ = 74 EZI

: J\ thfoorn| __
o) 3 Qﬁ
[IX
1l 0o
L ﬂ Etm L
Kitchen / Dinin LH% Q0 LH%: 00
Cm 115 me 2 'dlLIﬁ]b: ‘ \QA ‘ ‘ ‘ M ‘ ‘ — itchen / Dining %ﬁlﬁ
. 11.3 m?
! ) @ 1] \
=3 i B HH QHHD ] —1-Kitchen / Dining HH =Kitchen / Dining HH A 29/0322 TM Fenestration amendment MD
)//%t/mz/ ] . KF ] 11.6 mz 1L ] 11.6 m2
: — %/St — i — i — Ti REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN.‘ ‘CHKD.
V £
] Living Room @ fa @ Livir113gzl=rzngom® v PROJECT .
[ ca i | — | | lvy Road, Macclesfield
—— —— m ] Living Room Living Room
13.4 m? 13.4 m?
. —
]t | a N - a N (] N
e 1 ] L] — ] — CLIENT

falt | |Hall | Peaks & Plains

Ground Floor First Floor
1:100 1:100 Block 7 Floor Plans

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @np2 PC MD 08/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

58(’\50-0 1 4 IZ:IR/-\(VV)IIEAB REVISION

CEEEPEEEE EEEE P EE e R e e e e e e e e R R R TR EEE I PTEEEEPEEEEIE I TR PP T ORI TP EE T EEAEIET .
o 000000000000 00000 00 g Planning

1:50 im J 3 4 9 g m 1:100 im 2 3 4 9 g 7 8




> TopofWal
5100

» 0FFlevel
2700

~9” 00GF Level
0

Front
1:100

> TopofWal
5100

~g» 01 First Floor Level
2700

. (E) Giou@ Floor

0

Back
1:100

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 8 alternative option.rvt

15
1:50

m

© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

1:10Q

1

m 2

3

4

g

g

I

g

9

10

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD my
A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amanements MD )
«Q

REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKDSD
PROJECT (>
lvy Road, Macclesfield

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 8 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE

1:100 @ A2 PC MD 23/07/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No

20-014

DRAWING No

1046

REVISION

STATUS

Planning




p

1:5
1:50

—

|

=

Bedroom 3

7.4 m?

t

[]

[ ]
N

3edrod

450

|

e

Hall
4.2 m?

St

1.2 me

B\edroom 1
1

2.7 m?

=l

I

=
]

N —

Kitchen & Dining

HH‘HH
5|

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block
Number

House

Type

Level

Area

Plot 19

3b5p

00 GF

40.1 m2

REV. ‘ DATE

Level

01 FF
Level

Plot 19 3b5p 40.1 m?

80.3 m?

Plot 20 00 GF
Level
01 FF

Level

2bdp 47.8 m?

Plot 20 2b4p 46.1 m?

93.9 m?

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

comments

A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amanements MD

fed

‘DRN.‘ ‘CHKD

PROJECT

lvy Road, Macclesfield

oo
Log-oveqa

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 8 Floor Plans

SCALE

SHEET SIZE

DRAWN

1:100 @A3

PC

CHECKED
MD

DATE
03/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

A:
0161 406 7333

=m-d

office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No

20-014

DRAWING No

1045

REVISION

Ff
14.3 m2 W@ -
% 9 m2 i ilel®
il | A =~ Ies
— D Kitche1r717&m2| g
i — O | T
: Living D wag —1 1
146 m . | H:
2R A
— %! .
) | |
—%—L————J]
Ground Floor
1:100
HH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHHHHHHHHHH » HH‘HH
2 3 4 5 g 7m 1;100

im

1

m 2

3

4

g

l

g

9

1

0

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x

Block

8 alternative option.rv

STATUS

Planning




© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

Top of Wall +0.3 ~g@~

g~ TopofWal— — — ~ _— _ _ s400. _ - _ — —

5100

01 FF Level +0.3
~o 01 FFLevel — e

— - — — — 3000- — - — — — - - - - - - - - —
2700
00 Ground Floor +0.3 ~ggw— : : S
ngOﬁFiieve‘r - - =0 - - - I=_ - - -~ - - - - - - - —-——-——-—

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD my

A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amendment MD )

«Q

REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD.ﬂD
A

PROJECT N

lvy Road, Macclesfield

~” Topoi Wall+0.3

- 5400 — — TopofWal~gr — — — — — — — —

5100

CLIENT
g 01 FF Level 103 P Peaks & Plains

- — 3000 — — — — — S — - - —
2700
DRAWING
YOOGround Floor +0.3 Bl k El \/ | n
- 3oo- . — - fﬂo@ctfvzt!::::::** - ock 9 Elevations

. . SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1 ’ 100 1 ' 1 OO 1:100 @np2 PC MD 23/07/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

20-014 1051

S HEEEPEEEE EEEE PR R e EEEE PR TR R TR R s an .
B O Planning

1:50 im 2 3 4 9 g m 1:100 im 2 3 4 9 g 1 8 g 10

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 9 alternative option.rvt




© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)
Block Number | HouseType | Level | Area
Plot 21 2b4p 00 GF Level 39.8 m?
Plot 21 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.9 m?
79.7 m?2
Plot 22 2b4p 00 GF Level 40.4 m?
Plot 22 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.9 m?
80.2 m?
Plot 23 2b4p 00 GF Level 40.0 m?
Plot 23 2b4p 01 FF Level 39.7 m?
79.7 m2
i =] [ |
i —
| cleimm = - %E
| - i : S RN [ e M —
o Kichen&Dining [ 7= = s = e — —
| ,Plot23 ] | ] %% 7 - | Potzs | b \% D T
i n-2
mml e //{t/ D = B = | I it =
4 3t WGCT Kit o | B
Hall TN | 2] — Dining itehen 8 Dining | EJ j 1 . 5 s o | [ &
el et Lvinp| ot 22 e Plot 21m 0 || || Banpjoppp  Hall  Bedroom iine_Plot 21 . | 2
2.0 nzg 4N u Ep d—f = B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD
= Hall b st / | - Z St = D[ S A "L__ A 29/0322  TM Fenestration amendment MD a
J 5.4 m? : . 0.5 m2 7 3
DL Ju St. — = ' L] - (Pomy | | [ £ hroom ; REV.‘DATE ‘DRN.‘ ‘CHKD.
=l (2 = i LB "lE | °"
Living == I Bedroom 1 =R PROJECT
15.6 m? |:| = 12.9 m2 qu qu % _ .
Livng . B v 5 lvy Road, Macclesfield
43 m [
—— = B — _ i
E =1 Hall E 1 Bedroom 1 [
4.0 m2 ﬂ\ L :ﬂ i 13.3 m2 |:
= -
q _ T -
Ground Floor 1 First Floor Peaks & Plains
1:100 1:100
DRAWING
Block 9 Floor Plans
SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @ A2 PC MD 03/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

58(’\50-0 1 4 IZ:IR/-\(VV)IIEAB REVISION

CEEEPEEEE EEEE P EE e R e e e e e e e e R R R s an .
o 1000000000000 00000 00 g Planning

1:50 im 2 3 4 9 g m 1:100 im 2 3 4 9 g 1 8

P:12020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 9 alternative option.rv




7 TopofWall
2700

~” 00GF Level

0

Front

1:100

7 TopofWall
2700

~ 00GF Level

0

Back
1:100

ps | TP ERRETRREEEET T

Rig
1:100

ht

Left
1:100

1:50 1m P

P:2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 10.rvt

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: buff/pink brick compatible with local
vernacular

Roofs: thin edge tile

Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
Metal clad

1:100

1

m P

3

4

g

g

7

§

g

10

1

1

1

2

1

3 1

4

1

A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendments MD -g[?

REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKI“:z
D

PROJECT . 5

lvy Road, Macclesfield K

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 10 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED | DATE

1:100 @M PC MD 13/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20-014 1056

STATUS .

Planning




1:5
1:50

|

11.7 m3

I/

Qedroom 1

roo
7.7m

im

P:12020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x

Block 10.rvt

I

2,

itchen

Dining
122 m?

Living

13.4 m?

—_—

Ground Floor
1:100

HH‘HH
5|

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO

BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE
DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND

SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block House

Number | Type Level Area
Plot24 | 2b3p | 00GFLevel | 62.1m2
62.1 m2

JL0)

Q)

«

REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('D

PROJECT o

on

lvy Road, Macclesfield

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 10 Floor Plans

SCALE
1:100

SHEET SIZE
@A3

DRAWN
PC

CHECKED
MD

DATE
13/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

0161 406

=m-d

7333

office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No

20-014

DRAWING No

1055

REVISION

1:100

im 2

3

4

g

l

g

9

1

0

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

STATUS

Planning




g Top of Wall +0.85
5650

” 01 FF Level +0.85
3550

. @ Gioulci I_Evel +0.85
850 '

7 TopofWall
4800

g~ 01 FF Level |
2700

9 00GF Level
0

Top of Wall +0.85 ~g

Back
1:100

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 11 alternative option.rvt

15
1:50

_ Topof Wall ~g~

4800

_01FF Level g~

2700

0

5650

()i FELeleI +0.8£> b

3550

00 GF Level g

m

1:10Q

© BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

B THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: red brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD my

A 29/03/22 TM  Fenestration amendments MD )
«Q

REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKDSD

PROJECT ()

lvy Road, Macclesfield

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 11 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE

1:100 @ A2 PC MD 12/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

1

m 2

3

4

g

g

I

g

9

10

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
STATUS

Planning




2020\20-014\Drawings'

] —
7l
WC |[# |
;@ .9 m?
g 1.9 J
St
Plot 26
U
Living ]
18.1 m?
= HaII2

Ground Floor
1:100

cg | TEPE TR EEER R R T

O

= |
00
L M
i
Kitchen & Dining
12.3 m2
I —
. | 160 \ Plo t25
Kitchen & Dining ¢
17.6 m2 \\ 10m2
LIPS e
% 2m?
| D ’Omz
[ DL
I —
Living
. ] [::::::::J 15.8 m2
— —

1:50 im P

wn
(o))

planning\xrefs\x - Block 11 alternative option.rv

—

N

]

Bedroom 3

7.5 m?

2

DN

L TPlot 26

B droi'l'n 2
12.4

L

Hall
7.3 m?

Hall
7.3 m?

e
]

Bedroom 2
13.1 m2

A
Plot 25

NS =i

I
A

1:100

] Bedrgorzn1
1 T ﬁ\’i |
—
e = p
First Floor
1:100

HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH HH‘HH
1m 2 3 4 ! 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 15

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

mo

OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT

MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN

CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO

BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

Block
Number

House

Type Level

Area

Plot 25 2b4p 00 GF Level

39.8 m?

Plot 25 2b4dp 01 FF Level

39.3 m?

79.1 m?

Plot 26 2bdp 00 GF Level

47.6 m?

Plot 26 2b4dp 01 FF Level

45.9 m?

93.5 m?

B 20/09/22
comments

A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendments

REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘

KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

MD

‘CHKD

fed

PROJECT

lvy Road, Macclesfield

199
I 9veqa

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 11 Floor Plans

DRAWN
PC

CHECKED
MD

SCALE
1:100

SHEET SIZE
@A3

DATE
12/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

0161 406 7333
office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

=Mz

Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

DRAWING No

1060

JOB No

20-014

REVISION

STATUS

Planning




W

Top of Wall +0.925

00 Ground Level +0.925

925

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 12.rvt

02 GF Level
0

Back
1:100

15
1:50

_ Topof Wall ~gp~
4800

_ 01 FF Level ~gpr
2700

_ 00 GF Level ~g~

0

m

2

3

4

g

q

m

Left
1:100

1:10Q

im 2 3

4

g

g

I

g

9

1

0

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4 15

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

Walls: buff/pink brick compatible with local vernacular
Roofs: thin edge tile
Projecting surrounds to doors/windows: Metal clad

B 20/09/22 KS  Revision to accommodate planning comments ~ MD my

A 29/03 TM  Fenestration amanement MD )
«Q

REV. ‘ DATE ‘ DRN. ‘ ‘CHKDSD

PROJECT (e 0

lvy Road, Macclestfield

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

DRAWING

Block 12 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE DRAWN CHECKED DATE

1:100 @a2 PC MD 12/08/21

A:

T:
E:
W:

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
0161 406 7333

office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

EBONO_O 1 4 [‘)IR/-\OWIIENGO REVISION

Planning




BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO

Plot 28 Plot 27 BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND

SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS
J - Hall Hall - L
4.4 me

i

=
Bedroom 3 throo (- Bathro — 4.4 m? Bedroom 3
oo 2m3 .ﬂ 42 m? roor Area Schedule (GIA)
jﬁ ‘ - }< — ‘ %[ Block | House
Number| Type Level Area
. —~ — st L] | —

—
j / (o % % Plot 27 2bdp 00 GF Level | 47.7me
j Bedroomt Plot 27 2b4p 01 FF Level 45.9 m2
N 2

; Bedroom 2
125m oy 93.6 m2

1 2 m2
e S
Plot 28 2bdp 00 GF Level 47.7 m?
Plot 28 2bdp 01 FF Level 46.0 m2

=] ] e = 93.7 m?

IC I

First Floor
1:100

B 20/09/22 KS Revision to accommodate planning MD

comments 'U

A 29/03 TM Fenestration amanement MD Q)

(@)

REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('D

Plot 28 Plot 27 PROJECT gg

lvy Road, Macclesfield

] j ;
f @‘4 St. = = St. ﬁ
ol W

1—D—
W y
e B ) o
N I (—— CLIENT .
—— ] H 8 ] Peaks & Plains
D | Kitchen & Dining | | Kitchen & Dining ||— D
iy ] 17.8 m2 17.8 m? N
Living =1 et = ng
‘m[ Hal [ m . Block 12 Floor Plans

5.4 m2 Iy — 55m2 H

B>

_
1—<H SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
—_— — — 7 —_ - — 1:100 @A3 PC MD 12/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
G ro u n d F I oo r Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

A:
. T: 0161 406 7333
1 . 100 E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
- ERRRRRRRRRRERERERR HH‘HH HH‘HH AERRERRRRRR RN RRRERRRRERRRA RN » \H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HH\H\‘HHHH‘HHHH‘HHHH‘\H\HH‘HHHH‘\H\ 20-014 1065
1:50 1m a 9 4 ] g m 1:100 1m a 9 4 ] q 7 g 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 | STATUS

Planning

P:\2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 12.rv




g TopofWall
2475

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Material Schedule

> TopofWall
2475

~9” 00GF Level
0

Walls: buff/pink brick compatible with local
vernacular

Roofs: thin edge tile

Projecting surrounds to doors/windows:
Metal clad

A 29/03/22 TM Fenestration amendment MD g)J
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKI“:!

D
PROJECT . 1
Ilvy Road, Macclesfield o

CLIENT

Peaks & Plains

Back
1:100

1:5
1:50

DRAWING

Block 13 Elevations

SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 16/08/21

BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE

A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY

1m

P:2020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs\x - Block 13.rvt

T: 0161 406 7333

E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk

W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20-014 1071

STATUS

Planning




1:5
1:50

P:12020\20-014\Drawings\planning\xrefs

Plot 29

]

Bedroom 1
12.8 m2

N

Hall
6.5 m?

=7 | *[ 5"
Kitchen
8.1 m2
I

J [

Living & Dining

=

=3

L

Ground Floor
1:100

im

x - Block 13.rvt

By

HH‘HH
5|

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

THIS DRAWING IS THE SUBJECT OF COPYRIGHT WHICH VESTS IN
BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED. IT IS AN INFRINGEMENT
OF COPYRIGHT TO REPRODUCE THIS DRAWING, BY WHATEVER
MEANS, INCLUDING ELECTRONIC, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED WHICH
RESERVES ALL ITS RIGHTS

mo

BOWKER SADLER PARTNERSHIP LIMITED ASSERTS ITS RIGHTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED AS THE AUTHOR OF THIS DESIGN

REPORT ERRORS & OMISSIONS TO ARCHITECT.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY PLAN AND ALL RELEVANT RISK ASSESSMENTS

Area Schedule (GIA)

1:100

1

m 2

3

4

g

l

g

9

10

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

Block | House
Number | Type Level Area
Plot29 | 2b3p | O00GFLevel | 61.4m2
61.4 m2
U
Q)
(@)
REV. ‘ DATE ‘DRN. ‘ ‘CHKD('D
PROJECT ~d
. LY
lvy Road, Macclesfield
CLIENT
Peaks & Plains
DRAWING
Block 13 Floor Plans
SCALE SHEET SIZE | DRAWN CHECKED | DATE
1:100 @A3 PC MD 16/08/20
BOWKER SADLER ARCHITECTURE
A: Hatherlow House, Hatherlow, Romiley, Stockport SK6 3DY
T: 0161406 7333
E: office@bowker-sadler.co.uk
W: www.bowker-sadler.co.uk
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
20-014 1070
STATUS .
Planning




This page is intentionally left blank



Application No:

Page 73 Agenda Item 6

22/2593M

Location: NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16 9HE

Proposal: Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include
demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage
and their replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side
extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition of the existing
agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced with a single
storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements,
reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated works.

Applicant: c/o Agent, Calderpeel

Expiry Date: 26-Sep-2022

SUMMARY

The application site comprises New Hall, a Grade Il listed building and its
associated outbuildings. The site is set within spacious grounds and is
located within the countryside and Green Belt.

This submission mirrors applications 22/1586M and 22/1088M which secured
consent for modifications to the main dwelling in April 2023, with the addition
of a leisure suite to be incorporated into the existing former stable/barn
building with a single storey extension replacing the current rear parking
bays. These additions retain a subservient role in scale and appearance,
appropriate to its context, and positively contribute to the historic group of
buildings whilst being acceptable within the Green Belt.

The proposals also include a new two storey garage to replace the existing
agricultural outbuilding (which has extant permission to be converted into a
separate dwelling) and works to adapt and reduce the domestic curtilage.

Very special circumstances are considered to existing which are considered
to outweigh the
inappropriateness.

The proposals include a comprehensive landscaping scheme for the site to
secure improvements to the overall appearance and biodiversity of the site,
but also facilitating improvements to the historic significance of New Hall, and
a green energy strategy.

identified harm to the Green Belt by reason of

OFFICIAL



Page 74

No concerns are noted with regards to highway safety matters, trees,
contamination, flood risk or drainage, or subject to conditions where
appropriate.

The proposal accords with the policies in the development plan and
represents a sustainable form of development.

The application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the receipt
of outstanding energy information.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION

Approve subject to conditions

REASON FOR REFERRAL

This application is referred to the Northern Planning Committee because the site area is 2.2
hectares and in line with the Council’'s Constitution it requires a Committee decision.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT

The application relates to New Hall, a 4 storey Grade Il listed building, with its adjoining cottage
and coach house, and associated outbuildings accessed off a private drive off Stocks lane,
Over Peover. New Hall is a late 17th century local gentry house, extended in the 19th century.
The site was formerly in use as a polo club and latterly as a family home.

The property occupies a relatively flat and isolated position with several outbuildings located
within its spacious grounds including a converted stable/barn and garage building previously
used as holiday let accommodation, and a portal frame agricultural building. A separate
dwelling lies some 100m to the south east of the site (also within the ownership of the applicant.)

The site is located within the Green Belt and open countryside, and lies within flood zone 1 and
within an area of generally very low flood risk with several small areas of a higher risk within
the site. There are no public rights of way (PROW) within the application site, with bridleway
(Peover Superior BR25) located to the east of the site which runs in a north to south direction.

There are mature trees surrounding the site though none are formally protected.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL

The application seeks consent for a scheme of works to refurbish the dwelling (including the
replacement of modern windows, reconstruction of later side extensions, removal of rear later
extension and replacement with two storey rear extension, re-landscaping (including
replacement of secondary driveway), relocation of the tennis courts, expose original brickwork
to New Hall). These works have previously been approved as part of householder application
(22/1586m and LBC 22/1088m). During the course of this application the plans for an attached
leisure suite were amended, in line with officer advice.

OFFICIAL



Page 75

This application now proposes the conversion and extension of the existing former stable
building to a leisure suite and a proposed two storey building for parking and ancillary
accommodation which would replace the existing agricultural building. It is also proposed to
improve the landscaping surrounding the dwelling and proposed leisure suite and to formalise
the curtilage of the site as a whole through a reconfiguration of curtilage.

The following plans and documents accompany the application;
* Planning application statement;

* Planning Statement

» Updated and supplementary Heritage statements

» Landscape and visual assessment

* Landscape strategy

» Garden curtilage comparison

* Ecological Report

* Arboricultural information

* Flood risk assessment

RELEVANT HISTORY

22/2594M - Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to
include demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage and their
replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation
alterations, demolition of the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced
with a single storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements,
reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated works. — Pending

22/1586M - Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include demolition of
Cottage/link/Coach House, rear wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a
reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations landscaping
enhancements and associated works - Approved 31 April 2023

22/1088M - Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to
include demolition of Cottage/link/Coach House, rear wing and part of the garage and their
replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation
alterations landscaping enhancements and associated works. — Approved 315t April 2023

20/5111M Prior approval for conversion of agricultural building into Dwelling Approved 12
January 2021

20/3962M Prior approval of change of use for conversion of agricultural building into dwelling.
Refused 4 November 2020

11/3859M Change of use of Barn to Holiday Accommodation Approved 14-Dec-2011

10/4017M Erection of field shelter for use in conjunction with polo pitch Refused 4 February
2011

10/0818M Proposed single storey rear extension Approved 28 April 2010

OFFICIAL



Page 76

10/1122M - Proposed Single Storey Rear Extension - Approved with conditions - 19-May 2010

09/4299M - Proposed agricultural storage building - Determination - appvl not reqd (stage 1) /
20-Jan-2010

09/3673M - Change of use of barn to holiday accommodation - Approved with conditions / 10-
Feb-2010

09/3449M - Erection of stables and agricultural building - Withdrawn / 16-Dec-2009

09/1745M Construction of helicopter landing pad and agricultural outbuilding with associated
footpath and track (retrospective) - Refused 26 August 20019

07/1390P Retention of orangery/conservatory. Refused 26 July 2007

06/0351P Certificate of lawfulness for existing use of land as residential Curtilage - Withdrawn
16 March 2012

06/0515P - Demolition of agricultural buildings. erection of single storey Building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & agricultural storage - Approved with conditions
/ 19-Apr-2006

06/0514P Listed building consent - Demolition of agricultural buildings. Erection of single storey
building & refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & Agricultural storage - Approved 19
April 2006

05/2906 Demolition of existing agricultural buildings. Erection of single storey building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & garaging -

Withdrawn 26 January 2006

05/2907P Demolition of existing agricultural buildings. Erection of Single storey building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form Stables & garaging -
Withdrawn 25 Jan 2006

05/1857P Full planning Conversion of barn to form ancillary accommodation & erection of
Stable block with garages & first floor workshops - Withdrawn 9 July 2005

05/1856P Listed building consent - Conversion of barn to form ancillary living
accommodation. Erection of extension and demolition of existing buildings.
Withdrawn- July 2005

00/0199P - First floor front extension - Refused 28 March 2000

00/0937P First floor side extension Approved 21 June 2000

32277PB - Bedroom, bathroom, kitchen and laundry extension and internal alterations -
Approved 28 January 1983

34388P Brick garage Approved 11 August 1983

OFFICIAL



Page 77

30297PB — Kitchen and utility extensions — 11 June 1982
29128P - Conversion of outbuildings to form separate dwelling - Refused 1982
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

By virtue of Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the application
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2010-2030 — Adopted July 2017
MP1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
PG1 Overall Development Strategy

PG 3 Green Belt

PG6 Open Countryside

SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East

SD2 Sustainable Development Principles

SE1 - Design

SE 3 — Biodiversity and Geodiversity

SE 4 — The Landscape

SE 5 — Trees, Woodland, and Hedgerows

SE 6 - Green Infrastructure

SE 7 - The Historic Environment

SE13 Flood risk and water management

Appendix C - Parking Standards

Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD)- Adopted
December 2022

PG9 Settlement Boundaries

HERL1 Heritage assets

HER 4 Listed Buildings

GENL1 Design principles

ENV 1 Ecological Network

ENV2 Ecological implementation

ENV 3 Landscape character

ENV5 Landscaping

ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation

ENV7 Climate Change

ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk

HOU 12 Amenity

HOU 13 Residential standards

RUR 11 Extensions and alterations to buildings outside of settlement boundaries
RUR 12 Residential Curtilages outside of settlement boundaries

Peover Superior Neighbourhood Plan - November 2019
LCDC1 — Local Character and Design

LCDC3 - Extensions and remodelling

LCDC4 — Alterations to roofs

LCDCS5 — Alterations to openings

OFFICIAL



Page 78

ENV 1 — Biodiversity
ENV 2 — Trees, hedgerows and watercourses
HAL — Heritage Assets

Other material planning considerations

Over Peover Design Guide

National Planning Policy Framework (updated 20th July 2021)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Cheshire East Design Guide
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning)

Strategic Highways — No objections.
Environmental Protection (CEC)

Contaminated Land — No objection. Recommend informative regarding environmental
protection act.

Amenity — No comments. Recommend informatives regarding hours of construction.

Air Quality — Recommend condition for EV charging.

Lead Local Flood Authority (CEC) — No objections in principle subject to condition requiring
details surface water drainage scheme.

United Utilities-. No comments received

Peover Superior Parish Council — No comments received
Cadent Gas — No comments received
REPRESENTATIONS

No representations received

OFFICER APPRAISAL

Background

Planning permission (22/1586M) and listed building consent (22/1088M) was secured at this
site in April 2023, for improvements to the dwelling, comprising;

replacement of modern windows with timber windows,

reconstruction of later side extensions,

removal of rear later extension and replacement with two storey rear extension,
relandscaping (including replacement of secondary driveway),

relocation of the tennis courts,

removal of rear recessed patio

removal of render to the front elevation of New Hall to expose original brickwork.
removal the rear brick built open fronted garage at the rear of the stable building.

OFFICIAL



Page 79

This current application for full planning incorporates all the details within the above approved
applications in addition to the incorporation of the leisure suite to the former stable block and
an extension to this building and replacement of the agriculture building with a detached garage.

This scheme originally proposed a large addition to the side of the main house to contain the
leisure facilities which was considered to be harmful to the setting and significance of the listed
manor house and its barns, due to its scale and design.

Principle of development
Green Belt
The application relates to an existing dwellinghouse within the Green belt.

Extensions or alterations to a dwelling that do not result in disproportionate additions over and
above the original dwelling are acceptable within the Greenbelt as outlined within the NPPF
and CELPS policy PG3.

SADPD policy RUR11 advises extensions and alterations to existing buildings in the open
countryside and Green Belt will be only be permitted where the proposed development would:

I. not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original
building;
il. respect the character of the existing building, particularly where it is of traditional
construction or appearance;
iii. not unduly harm the rural character of the countryside by virtue of prominence,
excessive scale, bulk or visual intrusion.
RUR11 states that proposals will usually be considered to represent disproportionate additions
where they increase the size of the original building by more than 30% in the Green Belt.

The dwelling has been extended previously, although the heritage assessment (and planning
history) demonstrates that much of this was pre-1948. The rear single storey extension is the
exception, constructed in the late 20th century and is considered an extension to the existing
dwelling. The proposed extensions to the dwelling occupy similar footprints (the rear extension
will be a reduced length and width although shall be slightly greater in height) and largely
replace existing extensions. This is calculated as a 27% increase in floor area of the dwelling,
(around 24% in volume) and is considered to comply with the provisions of SADPD RUR 11 in
this regard. It is noted that the extensions to the dwelling proposed are the same as part of the
recent approval (22/1586M).

The proposed leisure suite comprises a conversion and extension of the existing former stable
block for use as ancillary accommodation / leisure suite for the main dwelling. The existing flat
roof extension at the rear of the stables is to be removed and replaced with a single storey
extension of a slightly smaller footprint, lower eaves and ridge height. The proposed leisure
suite is considered to be in accordance with the provisions of CELPS policy PG3 and SADPD
policy RUR 11.

The proposed garage will be constructed in place of the existing agricultural building which
would be demolished. The existing agricultural building, has extant consent (prior approval) for
the conversion into a five-bedroom detached family dwelling along with associated curtilage

OFFICIAL



Page 80

and parking. The proposed garage would be smaller in volume (10m3) and would have a
smaller eaves height (0.7m). The garage building would have an asymmetrical roof and would
result in a greater ridge height (0.8m). Overall the building would represent a similar scale and
mass of the agricultural building. However, the building would not be in the same use and does
not therefore meet the criteria for replacement buildings within the Greenbelt, that is not
materially larger and in the same use. As such the proposals would comprise inappropriate
development within the Greenbelt.

Furthermore, the proposals include the creation of a formal garden area to the east of the
existing former stable building and between the agricultural building through the reconfiguration
of the curtilage surrounding the site. As this change of use does not comprise an exception to
greenbelt policy, this part of the proposals is also considered to comprise inappropriate
development within the Greenbelt.

Heritage and Design

New Hall is a late 17" century Grade Il listed local gentry house, extended in the late 19t
century. Set within landscaped grounds with a central tree lined driveway it is surrounded by
open fields, with tree lined boundaries. It has an early 18th century barn range to its south
(considered to be curtilage listed).

The Grade Il designation of New Hall denotes it is a building of national importance for its
special architectural and historic interest. Its interest lies in its origins as a local gentry house,
its architectural form set around a centralised plan. It holds a group value with the stable block
and currently has a sympathetic immediate and wider landscape setting, with sylvan character
and open fields beyond.

To the east of the main house are two later C19th additions, a two-storey former cottage /
kitchen wing and coach house, likely to be added when the site became a farmstead in the
C19th. Both have been heavily modified with modern render and replacement windows, porch
and link additions to the front, a 20th century stack to the kitchen wing. There have been
significant internal alterations to both buildings and a late 20th century addition to the rear of
the kitchen wing. The only part of remaining historic fabric is a small area of exposed brickwork
to the rear.

The stable/barn range lies to the south of the dwelling and dates from the 18th century, with
the southern range added in the 19th century, with various alterations in the 2000s. Prior to the
alterations, historic information shows that the building has had a number of large sheds and
additions to its east and south during the 20th century which filled the courtyard space,
subsequently demolished.

Internally the former stables have been previously partially converted into self- contained units
with modern fittings, the only main element of interest being the trusses within the attic and
remain ancillary to the main house.

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states, ‘In

considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed
building or its setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of

OFFICIAL



Page 81

preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses.’

The NPPF makes clear in paragraph 199 that great weight should be given to the conservation
of designated heritage assets and their setting. CELPS Policy SE7 supports proposals which
do not cause harm to or better reveal the significance of heritage assets. SADPD policy HER 4
requires, amongst other things, that proposals affecting a listed building have special regard to
the desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or
historic interest that it possesses. Where a proposal would lead to less than substantial harm
to the significance of a listed building, the harm will be weighed against the public benefits of
the proposal, including securing its optimum viable alternative use.

Policy HA1 of the Over Peover Neighbourhood plan advises that proposals which conserve and
enhance the Parish’s heritage assets and their setting will be supported particularly if the
proposals would help retain the assets in active use. Support may only be given where the
level of harm to the significance of the asset has been sufficiently outweighed by arising public
benefits.

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF seeks to ensure that, amongst other things, developments function
well and add to the overall quality of the area, be visually attractive as a result of good
architecture, layout and landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history, while not
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change; establish or maintain a strong
sense of place, and create attractive and distinctive places to live, work and visit. Policy SE1 of
the CELPS sets out the design criteria for new development and states that development
proposals should make a positive contribution to their surroundings. It seeks to ensure design
solutions achieve a sense of place by protecting and enhancing the quality, distinctiveness and
character of settlements. It should also respect the pattern, character and form of the
surroundings. Policy SD2 of the CELPS further details the design matters that should be
considered, including; height, scale, form and grouping of development, choice of materials,
external design features, massing of development and the balance between built form and
green/public spaces. Furthermore, development will be expected to respect and where
possible, enhance the significance of heritage assets, including their wider settings.

SADPD Policy GEN 1 requires proposals to create high quality development reflecting local
character and design and creating a sense of identity and legibility by using landmarks and
incorporating key views into, within and out of new development and reflecting local character.
Peover Superior NP Policy LCD 1 seeks to ensure buildings, features and materials are
representative of the area.

The Conservation officer is satisfied that the former stable block is a suitable base for the leisure
complex and that the internal alterations and extension at the rear are acceptable and more in
keeping with the historic barn range than the existing extension and will utilise materials to
match. The design of the extension is a simple addition that is subservient to the existing
building and will not detract from the appearance of the collection of buildings.

The agricultural shed will be replaced with a traditionally designed brick building. A courtyard is
retained between the rear of the proposed leisure suite and proposed garage with landscaping
surrounding the buildings. The replacement building is considered to be an acceptable form
and design for this domestic outbuilding.

OFFICIAL



Page 82

Overall, the scheme is considered to have overcome heritage concerns raised on the original
scheme.

Subject to the inclusion of an appropriate conditions, the proposals are considered acceptable
and in accordance with the provisions of development plan policy, and advice within the NPPF.

Landscape

Policy SE4 of the CELPS seeks to conserve the landscape character and quality and where
possible, enhance and effectively manage the historic, natural and man-made landscape
features that contribute to local distinctiveness of both rural and urban landscapes. Policy SD2
advises that development should respect and, where possible, enhance the landscape
character of the area.

Policy ENV3 of the SADPD outlined that development proposals should respect the qualities,
features and characteristics that contribute to the distinctiveness of the local area, as described
in the Cheshire East Landscape Character Assessment (2018) taking into account any
cumulative effects alongside any existing, planned or committed development. Policy ENV5 of
the SADPD sets out what should be included in landscaping plans.

The site lies within landscape character type (LCT) 7: Lower Wooded farmland and Landscape
character area (LCA)7D: Marthall as identified in the Cheshire East Landscape Character
Assessment. The site forms a cluster of built form set a considerable distance from Stocks
Lane. This is characteristic of other built clusters in the vicinity of the site.

The site is generally well screened with mature hedgerow and trees running along the site
boundaries. The proposals will largely follow existing footprints and roof forms and materials
will be sympathetic to the existing. The submitted site plan indicates new tree planting,
hedgerows to the north and east and an area of woodland to the south west. The formal planting
area surrounding the parking area to the rear of the main dwelling is shown to be larger than
previously approved although further landscaping detail can be secured by condition.

Large areas of hard landscaping to the front of the dwelling will be removed and replaced with
a formal gardens and new access driveway to the side of the dwelling providing access to the
proposed garage. This will require the removal of several mature trees however the application
states this will be compensated for by replacement planting. It is also proposed to alter the lawn
area and tennis courts to the south west of the dwelling to grazing land outside of curtilage as
part of a reconfiguration of curtilage. Notwithstanding the principle within in the greenbelt issue,
the visual impact of this is acceptable.

From longer range views, the site will continue to be viewed as a cluster of buildings set within
treed surroundings. Overall, the landscaping envisaged will enhance the setting of the site and
the setting of the listed building. Furthermore, the proposals are considered to conserve the
landscape character of the area in accordance with CELPS policy SE4, SE5 and SADPD policy
ENV 5.

Living Conditions

CELPS policy SE1 seeks to ensure appropriate levels of privacy for new and existing residential
properties. Policy SD 2 also expects all development to contribute positively to an area’s
character and identity, creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness in terms of its relationship to

OFFICIAL



Page 83

neighbouring properties. SADPD policy HOU 12 seeks to ensure development does not cause
unacceptable harm to the amenities of adjoining or nearby occupiers of residential properties,
sensitive uses, or future occupiers of the proposed development due to:

1. loss of privacy;

2. loss of sunlight and daylight;

3. the overbearing and dominating effect of new buildings;

4. environmental disturbance or pollution; or

5. traffic generation, access and parking.

This advice is echoed within Over Peover neighbourhood plan Policy LDC3.

SADPD Policy HOU 13 (table 8.2) and the Cheshire East Design Guide set out the standards
for space between buildings and the requirement to include an appropriate quantity and quality
of outdoor private amenity space, having

regard to the type and size of the proposed development. This is required to maintain an
adequate standard of privacy and amenity between residential properties and provide
appropriate amenity space for future occupants.

New Hall is located a significant distance from the nearest neighbouring property, New Hall
Farm, (some 90m to the south of the site), also within the applicants ownership. The proposals
to replace the agricultural building with a proposed garage would result in an improved amenity
position with regards to comings and goings and general activity at the site to the neighbouring

property.
It is noted that there are no neighbour objections to the proposals.

It is therefore considered that the proposals comply with the principles of CELPS policy SE1,
SADPD policies HOU 12 and 13, Over Peover NP policy LDC 3 and advice within the Cheshire
East Design Guide in this regard.

Highways/Accessibility

CELPS Policy CO 1 deals with sustainable travel and transport. It supports a shift from car
travel to public transport and seeks to guide development to sustainable and accessible
locations.

SADPD policy INF3 requires that amongst other things, proposals provide safe access to and
from the site for all highway users and incorporate safe internal movement in the site to meet
the requirements of servicing and emergency vehicles.

The highway officer has not raised any objections to the proposals as pedestrian and vehicular
access to the site remains unchanged although a secondary driveway through the site will be
removed. Ample parking exists on site.

There would be no adverse impact on the safety or operation of the adjacent highway. The
proposals comply with CELPS Appendix C: Parking Standards and SADPD policy INF 3, and
Policy CO1 of the CELPS.

Trees

OFFICIAL



Page 84

CELPS Policy SE5 seeks to ensure the sustainable management of trees, woodland and
hedgerows including provision of new planting to provide local distinctiveness within the
landscape, enable climate adaptation resilience, and support biodiversity. Furthermore, the
planting and sustainable growth of large trees within new development as part of a structured
landscape scheme is encouraged in order to retain and improve tree canopy cover within the
borough as a whole. Similarly SADPD policy ENV 6 and Over Peover NP policy ENV 2 requires
proposals to retain and protect trees, woodland and hedgerows. Proposals should include
measures to secure the long term maintenance of newly planted trees.

The application site benefits from extensive tree cover within and adjacent to the site
boundaries including an avenue of trees bordering the main access driveway. None of the trees
on the site are afforded any statutory protection although they are considered to make an
important contribution to the setting of a Grade Il Listed building.

The relocation of the tennis courts formed part of the previously approved application for the
extension and remodelling works (22/1586m). As part of that application, the court was moved
further to the east and away from mature trees and hedgerow along the western boundary in
line with the tree officer comments at the time. The approved layout forms part of this scheme
however the arboricultural assessment, refers to the previous layouts and as such is inaccurate.
As the current layout was found to be previously acceptable, it is not considered that the
proposals would harm trees in this regard.

Flooding and Drainage

Policy SE13 of the CELPS states that developments must integrate measures for sustainable
water management to reduce flood risk, avoid an adverse impact on water quality and quantity
within the borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health and recreation.

The site is located within Flood Zone 1, indicating that the site is not at risk from fluvial or tidal
sources according to the Flood Map for Planning.

The Local Lead Flood Authority has commented on the application and raised no objections to
the proposals on the basis that a detailed drainage scheme is provided by condition, based on
the principles outlined within the submitted flood risk assessment.

It is considered that a condition could appropriately deal with drainage design and management
at the site and that the proposals accord with policy SE13 of the CELPS and the NPPF in this
regard.

Contamination and Environmental Protection

CELPS policy SE12 seeks to ensure that all development is located and designed so as not to
result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface water and groundwater, noise,
smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other pollution which would
unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or detrimentally affect amenity or cause
harm. In most cases, development will only be deemed acceptable where it can be
demonstrated that any contamination or land instability issues can be appropriately mitigated
against and remediated, if necessary.

Environmental Health have suggested a condition requiring an EV charging scheme to
encourage the uptake of electric vehicles to promote sustainability and air quality, however Part
S of Schedule 1 of the Building Regulations 2010 covers legislation regarding infrastructure for

OFFICIAL



Page 85

charging electrical vehicles. Planning decisions should not duplicate the function of other
regulatory bodies or controls, and therefore as the development would be subject to Building
Regulations, it is not necessary to impose such a planning condition.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Policy SE12 of
CELP and the NPPF.

Ecology and Biodiversity

Section 15 of the NPPF considers the conservation and enhancement of the natural
environment. Local Plan Policy SE 3(5) requires all developments to aim to positively contribute
to the conservation of biodiversity. This is echoed within SADPD policy ENV 2. Policy ENV 1
of the Over Peover Neighbourhood Plan, seeks to prevent any development that would have
an adverse impact on biodiversity, and support where biodiversity can be enhanced.

Bats

Evidence of bat activity in the form of minor roosts of a number of relatively common bat species
has been recorded within the existing buildings on site (the house, former stables building, brick
outbuilding and wooden stable building). The usage of the buildings by bats is likely to be limited
to single or small numbers of animals using the buildings for relatively short periods of time and
there is no evidence to suggest a significant maternity roost is present. The loss of the roosts
associated with the buildings on this site, in the absence of mitigation, is likely to have a low
impact upon on bats at the local level and a low impact upon the conservation status of the
species as a whole.

The submitted report recommends the installation of bat boxes on the nearby trees and also
features for bats to be incorporated into the proposed building as a means of compensating for
the loss of the roost and also recommends the supervision of the works to reduce the risk posed
to any bats that may be present when the works are completed.

It should be noted that since a European Protected Species has been recorded on site and is
likely to be adversely affected the proposed development the planning authority must have
regard to whether Natural England would be likely to subsequently grant the applicant a
European Protected species license under the Habitat Regulations. A license under the
Habitats Regulations can only be granted when:

» the development is of overriding public interest,
* there are no suitable alternatives and
» the favourable conservation status of the species will be maintained.

Taking each test in turn:

e The proposed development would secure the long term viability of this listed building
thorough its extension, and through the extension and conversion of buildings which
affect its setting. It is therefore considered that the development is of overriding public
interest,

e The works are required to sustain and modernise the listed building and those within its
setting and there are no suitable alternatives to this. Other works that may not require
any form of permission from the LPA could have an equally harmful impact upon bats.

OFFICIAL



Page 86

e The Council’'s Ecologist advises that the proposed mitigation and compensation is
acceptable and is likely to maintain the favourable conservation status of the species of
bat concerned. As such, it is recommended that the mitigation proposed be
conditioned in the event of approval.

The tests of the Habitats Regulations are therefore met, with the favourable conservation status
of the species likely to be maintained, and Natural England are considered to be likely to grant
a licence for these works.

Nesting Birds
A condition requiring construction/demolition and/or vegetation clearance works to avoid

nesting season is required.
It is unlikely any other protected species are affected by the proposals.

Ecological Enhancement

In accordance with Local Plan policy SE3(5) all development proposals must seek to lead to an
overall enhancement for biodiversity. This planning application provides an opportunity to
incorporate features to increase the biodiversity value of the final development in accordance
with Local Plan Policy SE 3. This can be secured by condition.

Other Considerations

Further to the assessment of the principle of development above, Paragraph 147 of the NPPF
advises ‘Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not
be approved except in very special circumstances’.

Para 148 continues ‘When considering any planning application, local planning authorities
should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special
circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by
other considerations’.

It has already been established that the application proposals represent inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. As stated in para 148 of the NPPF, this harm is to be afforded
substantial weight. As such, any considerations in favour of the proposed development would
need outweigh the harm identified in order for Very Special Circumstances to exist.

Very special circumstances are required to justify:

A) the proposed replacement of the existing agricultural building/approved dwelling with the
proposed detached two storey garage/ancillary building,

B) the proposed reconfiguration of the residential curtilage.

The following other material considerations have been put forward by the applicant as a
package of measures to clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and amount to the required
VSCs.

e The development that could be achieved on the site without the need for planning
permission would facilitate a more intensive use resulting from an additional dwelling

OFFICIAL



Page 87

e The scale and siting of the additions proposed would deliver a more compact
arrangement than the fall back, and significant and structural landscaping would soften
the site.

e Substantial reduction in formal curtilage achieved through the reconfiguration of the
gardens.

Planning Balance

The proposed garage building and the alterations to the garden area of the application property
would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate development should not
be approved except in very special circumstances. As advised in Green Belt policy, substantial
weight should be afforded to any harm to the Green Belt.

The existing agricultural building has extant consent (20/5111m) for a two storey 5 bed dwelling
with associated curtilage and garage. The applicant contends that the proposals would have a
greater impact on openness in terms of the size and extent of curtilage approved and the
increased use and degree of activity that a separate dwelling would have. Whilst this extant
permission is acknowledged, it is considered that the use of the agricultural building as a
dwelling would be comparable in terms of the intensity of use to the existing agricultural use.
The proposed garage building is also notably higher than the existing building and the proposed
conversion. For these reasons only very limited weight is afforded to the fallback position of
the agricultural building being converted to a dwelling.

Returning the front lawn and former tennis courts to the south west of the dwelling to agricultural
/ grazing land is put forward to off-set an additional area of curtilage to the north east of the
dwelling to accommodate the garage and driveway to access the rear of the dwelling, required
as a result in the approved landscaping to the front of the dwelling which is currently used as a
parking area. The ‘swap’ would be for a much smaller area of curtilage and therefore there are
benefits to the Green Belt through reduced encroachment into the Green Belt and a
consolidation of the curtilage closer around the existing buildings. This carries moderate
weight.

During the course of the application, in order to further supplement the package of very special
circumstances, the applicant has provided an initial energy and sustainability strategy for this
site which would, amongst other things, propose solar panels on the proposed garage roof and
an air source heat pump within the garage. Further details on this matter are awaited and will
be reported as an update, but initial discussions suggest that the proposals would generate
energy for use on site to significantly boost the sustainability performance of the site as a whole,
including solar and air source energy. The applicant has advised that further information will be
supplied and this will be reported to committee, and have requested that a detailed scheme
could be required via condition. It is intended that a significant amount of the on-site energy
usage will be delivered by these green energy proposals. This is a further positive aspect of
the proposal.

The development as whole delivers benefits to the listed building, notably including the removal
of unsympathetic additions to the house and the curtilage listed stables. The stables have a
lawful use as individual units of holiday accommodation, which would be removed and would
reduce levels of activity within the site, thereby benefitting the openness of the Green Belt. The
traditional design of the proposed garage utilising matching brick and would be more
sympathetic to the setting of the listed building and surrounding buildings than the approved

OFFICIAL



Page 88

dwelling, and arguably the existing agricultural building. The development would also result in
the reduction of hardstanding as this would be incorporated into the landscaping scheme
proposed and the overall reduction in domestic curtilage. It is also now proposed that green
energy measures will be incorporated into the proposal, which adds more weight to the package
of benefits resulting from the proposed development.

Overall, subject to the receipt of the green energy strategy, the proposed benefits in this case
are considered to clearly outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt, and very special
circumstances are considered to exist. The development would support the long-term viability
of the listed building, remove unsympathetic alterations to the listed buildings, improve the site’s
sustainability credentials through the provision of a suitable and sensitively designed renewable
energy scheme, reduce the extent of domestic curtilage, and the levels of activity associated
with the holiday lets within the stables.

Conclusion

The proposed extensions to the dwelling and the proposed conversion and extension of the
former stable building to a leisure suite are considered to represent proportionate and
sympathetic alterations and additions to this property within the Green Belt. Furthermore. the
proposals would preserve the character, appearance, historic integrity and significance of this
listed building and the wider rural area. No concerns are noted with regards to heritage and
design, highway safety, landscape, trees, flood risk and drainage or amenity subject to
conditions where appropriate.

Whilst the proposed garage building and the alterations to the garden area of the application
property would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt, very special circumstances are
considered to exist to outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with local and national planning policy, and is
accordingly recommended for approval, subject to the receipt of outstanding energy
information.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to the following conditions

1. Time limit

2. Approved plans

3. Materials samples to be submitted and approved

4. Details of bricks to be submitted and approved

5. Brick sample panel to be provided prior to commencement

6. Details of windows and doors at 1:20

7. Window/doors recessed a minimum of 100mm

8. Rainwater goods to be black metal

9. Conservation style roof lights

10.Method statement for replacement/ repair/treatment of remaining brickwork to the main
dwelling

11.Details of replacement staircase to dwelling

12.Hard and soft landscape scheme to be submitted, agreed and implemented

13.Tree retention

14.Works in accordance with the Arboricultural information

15.Works to proceed in line with ecological report

OFFICIAL



Page 89

16.Works to avoid nesting birds

17.Scheme for ecological enhancement to be submitted, agreed ad implemented

18. Drainage scheme to be submitted pre commencement, agreed and implemented

19.Tennis courts to be relocated / domestic use of field to cease

20. Details of boundary treatment.

21.Energy and sustainability strategy to be submitted prior to demolition of existing
agricultural building.

OFFICIAL



R'd C \’.DGHUY Lanc m
e Cottage °
Hollvhedge Farm Dal e Cotage £ e Q
aisy
Bank Farm / .
By : \
— L%
i\/—/./jedlerf&;k s ,a - ﬁ,y V\"\ Blease Farm % f
Radbroke © / Qx e Q
Farm House 0\ Qﬂ /Radbroke Hall “° il
od % p 5 j‘<\ N Newhall F O
o § X
aks Farm = /\ O
Sandy @ ob'./d\ 9 {
Lane Farm > Klll;t:;(;rd : = (
ﬁanor Farm ﬁ 6" ° M::TYda'e%
% O y Q] anor
>/ ~ gy < Co!shaw Hall
Q LS N Q/—\/
Road Side Farm 0
\{ u M ) X v, "
o e S O\;er Peover
=)=} Q f
B O o )
g @ 6009 ki =
Hillcrest Farm
Qdui s D /J

OFFICIAL

06 abed



Page 91

OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



22/2593M

NEW HALL,
STOCKS LANE,
OVER PEOVER,

WA16 9HE

cp obed



Page 94

CALDERPEEL.COM

0 25 50 125m © CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV_DESCRIPTION DATE _DRAWN
A SITE BOUNDARY LINE AMENDED 06-06-22 sl
KEY:
@ e Site Boundary
Ownership Boundary
Newhall Farm

CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD C H L D E R P E E L

Market Court 100 High St Electric Works ARCHI TETLCTS

20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER EXISTING SITE LOCATION PLAN

Altrincham Surrey Sheffield DWG: 21103 (PL) 006 A

WA14 4DW KT10 9QJ S128BJ DATE: 13.04.22

0161929 7622

01372 203 335

0114 250 7983

SCALE: 1:1250 @ A1 DRAWN:

SI



CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

Page 95

50m

40

30

10

|| || || || | I
20

W 2, A0
T ol
2 b fu
3 3 Q|w
i T
w > 8 R -
S E
ol 2 % wil-
2 23 alz
]
o
5 5
S & Clc
Ulc
%)
<
< 3
<t [a)
> 8 —
- <
22 8 ®
E338
B = D
O~ ™ —
%) = <
5389
[a'4
L
>
@)
L
o
o
(AN}
>
O
o
z
S
)
v
(@)
O
T
[7p]
3
<
T
=
(AN}
z
T o] 5 ——<
w Z
=\ © A ",
u < .. ‘v ‘ ,,, | “
! B /
SR = g q\
I , BT ,
\ Sk 1
A A\ |
A AR
,_, AV
g s,
\, B
2 . \
E” ~ prent
o .u.\., '
N\ A . f ﬂnw
S 4\\ AL RN ,,,, = FOLY
SR 5\ \ 4%mﬁ_Kmr
A A XA \ >
C A RS ) T/ P > N m l‘oi,. =<
O Y L 5 Ea ,,,, V’ ‘
4 _ \ g X< R | /
4 4\». - 4L .w ) ; J . &
\\/ VA" \ v N Ao A ,,,
V% L N Xk Y Bt
/ \ t B £ 7 ‘ L DG ,v y ¥
\\ / ,,,, B 7 AN v,ir,,v»‘ /A VA“)>¢< \‘, Y 7 “q
\ | S, L] ,«'&\v "
=7 WSy 5 R x2/4e | \ {
TR ACIET STV \ X A
- T et
&)
-
<9 R
2l £:5 38
gl 25233
w G N —
|l Sos55
Te]
Y
o
3] 2. ;8¢
“f ot~ m
o) O »w» Dk —
(%3] — W wn¥o
s N
5E o
gl 5588
ol e<x5<°2
Sl 2ER%35




CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

REV_DESCRIPTION DATE DRAWN
- 00-00-00 --
)
€
),
4
).
4
).
4
I FL 66.78
p
<
)
4
D
4
),
4
0 -
FL66.79 FL 66.79
I 1Y
/
l FL 66.69 l\\\
FL 66.71
FL 66.69
FL 66.70 \
| e
FL 66.68 l\\\
==
existing lower ground floor plan
——
H U
Q
(@)
- 0]
(o]
o
‘.—-
A
‘.—-
o
__B
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD | | C H L D E R P E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works A RCHITET LCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LAN E, OVER PEOVER EXISTING LOWER GROUND FLOOR PLAN
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield DWG: 21103 (PL) 015 *
WAT14 4ADW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ
0161 929 7622 01372 203 335 0114 2507983

DATE: 13.04.22
SCALE: 1:100 @ AO DRAWN: S§I



CALDERPEEL.COM

I S e S . @
0 1 2 3 4 5 10m
© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV_DESCRIPTION DATE DRAWN
CR 00-00-00 -
———
s B w—— FL71.65
FL 71.65 I
S
FL71.64
FL 71.68
FL71.67
S
]
FL71.68
FL 71.69 FL 71.66
FL71.67
FL 71.69
existing first floor plan
T
QD
(@)
(0]
o
\'
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD | | C H L D E R p E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works A RCHITET LCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LAN E, OVER PEOVER E)\(/I\/SSNS]TE?-(:S%?; PLAN
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield : *
WA14 4DW KT10 9Q)J S1 2BJ DATE: 13.04.22
SCALE: 1:100 @ AO DRAWN: SI

0161929 7622 01372 203 335 0114 250 7983



CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

REV_DESCRIPTION DATE DRAWN
CR 00-00-00 -
1
| —
| — ., -
‘ 2
T
| ,:f: FL 74.37 FL74:37 \
| z .
| o [T T
. i SR o
| — ilnninn
— 3
N
I
existing second floor plan
T
Q
(@)
9]
O
_— .
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD | | C H L D E R p E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works A RCHITET LCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield
WA14 ADW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ
0161 929 7622 01372 203 335 0114 250 7983

DWG: 21103 (PL) 018 *
DATE: 13.04.22
SCALE: 1:100 @ AO DRAWN: S§I



CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

0 1 2 4 5 10m
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV_DESCRIPTION DATE DRAWN
CR 00-00-00 -
existing roof plan
T
Q
«Q
D
O
(e}
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD C H L D E R p E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works A RCHITET LCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LAN E, OVER PEOVER EXISTING ROOF FLOOR PLAN
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield DWG: 21103 (PL) 019 *
WAT14 4ADW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ DATE: 13.04.22
SCALE: 1:100 @ AO DRAWN: S|

0161929 7622

01372 203 335

0114 250 7983



CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

Page 100
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
RgV DESCRIPTION OOD;I)TEO DRAWN

| | || || ||
10m

5
Vg
Y . =
__
| |
[ 8
DD g’”’”’”’”%’l’l’{'[’l’{'[’_’”’”’ﬁ?”"”’ 77z 7
I :
] ,
(727
Ve %
Sy oy
. = ST -
Qb Q <
Qb
|
é ,
)
|
| .
.
1 N T
;///////////////////
_
—
AT 2
E 7
L1 N
L] L L .
AN NN
LV L L
LLEE EE LD
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD MANCHESTER LIVERPOOL C H L D E R P E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works All Work and Social AvenueHQ ARCHITETLCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way  XYZ Building 17 Mann Island NEW HALL. STOCKS LANE EXISTING ELEVATIONS .
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield 2 Hardman Boulevard  Liverpool DWG: 21103 (PL) 021
WA14 4DW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ M3 3AQ L3 1BP DATE: 13.04.22
0114 250 7983 0161 929 7622 0151 662 0122 SCALE: 1:100 @ Al DRAWN: UL

0161929 7622 01372 203 335



CALDERPEEL.COM

Page 101

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

DATE DRAWN
00-00-00 Sl

10m

v
=h [
Wwiu
OLluw
|-
wl-
nu T
dlu
Clc
Ulc
\ \
%W = | —
|
I g
| 2
g &
w [a)
2
2 9
o —
SRR
5338
A
N AT
% / W O w -
| 259
\ |/
¥
%n
o \
| | \ |
| 1 — || |
i \ \ |
j | W W \ . ;L
| B
f | / | i
N
I \ | "
fﬁ . /%iz%zzﬂ
: W // _
| W | ”% .
f W% W | ///%// %%
i % /W 4//4
| \ \\\\\
f W =
,J . /?z
7i ¥ 1 -
i W ;,,,1\ W \
% .
\
f \ f /
| C |
1 \ \
\
%
% .
m W — W
Wﬁv«f?ﬂf Wu«uﬂ»« SRSy %
% . _ |
; \ I \ N
. | =
| | W
\ i ,
\ \ |
W | | // % -
\
| \ I \| ] Z
\ |
| \ I . , S
% I \ %)
\ \ \
. T / o o
\ | MW%V AN b
: AN \ i m
1 /// < 3
H w
T K
\ \ | - -
\ W | rmyV//
e Q
N IR~
3l 553, 8
gl 52525
2| 2~203
o
5 O
8 3 «
N\ gl 2,8 O
/% 2 555 o
a ol 2522
ﬂ ANn W N T o 0
/ 2] TXa=0
g g
¢% 2
al 225 8
o] 2coen”
cl sosa&x
Sl dos5no
un
A
172 ™
< mw I~
2l 25828
Al 223k s
£t 5 m
5% xR
w o2 IS
o 50258
L S Q2 Z 0o
Sl 22555




5 10m

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV DESCRIPTION DATE _DRAWN
- 00-00-00 -

20T abed

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

CALDERPEEL

CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD

Market Court 100 High St Electric Works ARCHI TETLCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER EXISTING AGRICULTURAL BUILDING

Altrincham Surrey Sheffield DWG: 21103 (PL) 023 *

WA14 4DW KT10 9QJ S128BJ DATE: 13.04.22

0161929 7622

01372 203 335

0114 250 7983

SCALE: 1:100 @ A3 DRAWN: §I



A XA A

CHESHIRE

SURREY

SHEFFIELD

ST
]

TR

LR

I )

T e
!

CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

Ownership Boundary

REV_DESCRIPTION DATE _DRAWN
A Site boundary & Landscape d + rescale  07-06-22 S|
B Revised planning 19-0622 _AG
CPlanner comment update 19-09-23_AG

KEY:

e Site Boundary

—

Infilled doors - to be retained and
fixed shut

€0T obed

CALDERPEEL

Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW
0161929 7622

100 High St
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

Electric Works

3 Concourse Way
Sheffield

S1 2BJ

0114 250 7983

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
DWG: 21103 (PL) 056 C
DATE: 13.04.22

SCALE: 1:500 @ A1 DRAWN:

S|

AR RCHITETLCTS®S



CALDERPEEL.COM

ooz Page 104
L](G]
n Z g 222
e 2 ° g 2
o .
I T egeseny o 5 g
7] <8B83283 c S o —
2 0O S3%dl<ale <] S ) e
w SIRISIN[2= 0T = @
z 2 E- 2 =2oc8 5 2
c @ € £ S 2
I~ T ‘5 2 o ] L2 s 3
<C K © |M ° 3 2 5= 3 s
° 2
a = 3¢ >~ = £/ o < 38 3 Dm.
ENCRNE s 8 /0 3 8o v
w oz FiRd el 7 b =4 5 0+ el )
W 2.8 S L Ve 2 £ S c o ° o
[T A 2 o w o2 = 3
(4 ° o o o »n O -
WL |59 @ 2 8% © - T o2 o 2
<< EE a % o v » $<c = a
o 3 o 8 oz 2 o g 2 &
a <5 o = =0 2 S o g = 2 ©
< £ B3 |3 2 58 W S 98T o ©
- v 0
O 5 g8 5 g ;3 2 SE 8Et: £ £
55 = = — £ =
=|v| 9| of €l &= [ [T+ o83 2 5
© Z zEegigs 6 = z¢ 2 ze £82% x 3
35 =
O Egds:o8
O Zgolssgs |
- AHekiE g g
b B58E3se . ,
Oz z ,
N %ABCDEF 3 7

%

%

oo
55

2

B
s

S
St

%

55
s
%

s
o3

3
%

T
53
oS

22
R
¢

R
A
s
b
s

5%
K5

TR
SRR
R

R
BR2A
R
R

=
R R
R
RIS

POOL STORE

AT
RS
s
IR

soreseresas
RRsess
G55

N
/

i
zTTTEE)
T |
R
RS assassssis]
R sssss]
R SR
ezl BRI

TR AR
%».%..&.3».&.»._
..2:::.::

R

TR
B Ty R ke
B s RS
e e et tet s
oo e e

Ry

RS
T
SRS
IR
e tet

55
2
o

A
4

o

%

%
S

,.
5
5

X
5%

s
2
5%
5
355
o
58
&

ks
3%
5
o B
5 KX
25 B

i) s

s R385

el s
| ——— ks
| \ |

POOL PLANT

, \
| w \
\ KA
2 LT |
| @ 22
| -
| L B 255
e —— SRR
| E—- .
| \ |
| = |
g |
| ) |
\ ks
, | |
— ! 55 |
! (3555 |
, | B3 |
5%
| ERXXXK] |
\ S |
, 5
S |
| 335 |
e
55 |
| B |
S |
, s / |
335
| 352 |
5% |
5555
| 1 5
355 ) |
, | K5 IR | ,
| K e e
, \ ) \ eI N
| B R .
| \ kst S i \
S [
| S s
| | ST s |
| 5] s | \ [
R (55 | [
\ B3 — prsssi] \ )
| | o 2 T RS
| \ o] T A ]
| A B SRS
e o R R I
| \ k3 R RS
| \ s

SRS

4
SRR

&

B
| B3

o

5o
o
S

i
58
58
K

S0
3
3

o
S

s
i

ENTERTAINMENT SPACE

| =
| 2 |
] |

| [ 3 =
| L——= 2 zZ=A

—— \ s s
| 3
|

s

5%
%

3o

2z

5
385

R
3285

5

XL
TET:
R
3%
e
5

%

o
8%

T2
T
s
BB

\\ , ,

B35
S
PSSR
| , — — TR
Ry
, , o Kasses
| |

]
e T IR Rsss
R RS SS R

R = _—
S R
RS 8 e
, , | e -
| Q ~
| | E \
| | z \ \ / |
| | o | \ \ \ . .
| , | - / / \ \ \ \
| | | I _
_ — | | R —~
— - — | | By | -
— B - | | RIS | _
N - I — I |
— — - | | | —
S — _ — | |
- - I — | | -~
— — - T | | r
e - S 1 |
- S - |
o — LS | ||
—— TR ass SRR | |
s aCaE s |
- SRR : , ,
S — R —
B k] = sz |
- N — ! tsd R |
I | | RS K38 o ———————1T | |
; ks -
s -
| | ,, gl / | |
| | \ | |
{
| | | {
| |
{
| | |
/ | |
, , [ L — , , 8
[ ~
{ s S E
, | [ — | | nE
T T RIS SO SIOst — o
| R T SR S e 3 | 0
| R RS SASRR gt B g
| R Rl p3s: | i
| £ Sk 55 £
| sesatesssates| R { w
| SR ° 5354 | [
| | oot %59
| s 8- 5 |
\ 555 g ke |
| | | & s
| &2 |
| | € b |
\ % k3 3B |
| | | s e s |
| I 3 [ Bess |
| | 1 5 P |
133595
S5
| , | ! k]
|
, , ,
5 psesssss
eSS SR
BRI,
SRS
| | | ettt
| |
|

%
235
o
K

s

35

=z
58
55

55
35

o

3%
%
5%

5
o

_k
T
R

s s
AT
R —

%

4

25

3%
35

5%

3
RS
i
RS
|
Kz

R
Essssssssss)

| | I

| |

A-"\
®
NS

e
}

zrg &
o

HABITABLE ROOM
FFL +68.90m
HABITABLE ROOM

T T T T 1|
. .
(I ,, ||| >
[ . | — -
o | — - — ~__
| | | 7 [ N I A A >
, | . N . .
| | | |
| | - o ,
| S E
| | | | %8 . -
, | | £ 3 I I
| | S E |
| | @ [ O A O A
| | 2 O A B B s . - -
| | + .
= | |
| | [ L] ,
| | w T e
| , N
| |
| |
| |

HABITABLE ROOM

| SR

.

o

-

e
e’

&

x

ing stable building)

garaging

(within exist

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

3,369 sqft
4,163 sqft - leisure complex

1,556 sqft -

SHEFFIELD
Electric Works

100 High St

SURREY
Esher

3 Concourse Way

Sheffield
S12BJ

Surrey
KT10 9QJ

0114 250 7983

01372 203 335

CALDERPEEL

AR R CH

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

DWG
DATE

CHESHIRE
Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham

WA14 4DW

0161929 7622

T ECT S

21103 (PL) 111 F
11.04.22
1

S|

100 @ A1 DRAWN

SCALE



CHESHIRE

SURREY

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

SHEFFIELD

AT

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

R/E\V DESACRIPTION . DATE DRAWN

& main house included 09-06-22 S|

B

evised Planning 15-06-23 AG

C

lanner comment update 19-09-23 AG

\\ .
New or relocated windows / doors to
replace existing

Windows/ doors to be rem

New doors to match existing door
frames

:| Proposed walls (all walls to be

repaired where necessary and
new wall finishes to be like for
like)

Existing walls (to be demolished)

QOutline of Previous Proposals

GOT obed

CALDERPEEL

Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW
0161 929 7622

100 High St
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

Electric Works

3 Concourse Way
Sheffield

S1 2BJ

0114 250 7983

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
DWG: 21103 (PL) 113 C
DATE: 13.04.22

SCALE: 1:100 @ AT DRAWN:

S|

AR RCHITET CTS



(0]
<

G

AG
Al

DATE _DRAWN

-06-"
-0
0
08-;
19-09-2

Page 106

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

New or relocated windows / doors to

CALDERPEEL.COM

Z
= E g
[a) <] ] _ @ o
[%} |auv mu %umo < @ =
22} £ - 2 o =
T c € 5 0% o = 9 o]
= 5 ° 2 2 a2 s 8 =
= = 3 » = € o +
= 8 [ o o =8% 5 5 17
= > 5 / < 5 g 20 T & 2
@] S Lo} el ] = ~ 0 o o P =
=4 id ° - o = 0 = e} =3 = /
- 3 s 2 o & 13 L g o .8 9
w T |y o ! c 3§ o oo @ = s <+
=g ERE o 2 o = T T2 o 2 Rel
gl 3 o [ XN 4 < < 5 a 1) |
O ERE s 9 @ 5 B 9 <«
c o o e \
5| 3o o = 2 o°
%} Sl Pe % O 3 <] o =
o 153 b3 g o S8 298 o o ,
= g g5 P 5 © 3Lz £ £ <3
O |55 = 2 £ 835 28:5 7 = o>
”Dg o € o = 0 ¥ X O C
ww .w.mde [©) £ e = s a @ c= s O o O
O35S e
=[33l5| 3|5 = n
oo 5
O &8l [ | | | | - 98
FEEEE . a
Qi 28t | _ _ _ o E 58
HEEE
52 = ! _ _ _ ° &
O el & I 1 O g5
z & x , I I I | z O a

%

35
35

2
g

==
R
RS

oV

NS S

R
KRR
e

——
s
I
RIS
e

R
TR
s
s sete
ey

POOL STORE

e TR

R R

BRI
SRR

T

:::ﬁ.

R
et
B
eS|
BRI

T
RIS
TITRRRRRE

TTRD
05

TR ERRSSs
TSI

7 s B \
o B \
R B SRS BS555
B o S B
e e e oy —— BR858,
R SO RARARE - bz
R P 5%
- \
R - S|
| B
| == 5 \
|

55

a

POOL PLANT

\

- , |
I \
[ aa
| ———— S
f
|
\ I
| i
| BEZ
R85
B
| — Ssisssessses
|

3

%
%
5

setoss

2
5

T
3
5
55
ete

o
3
2

53
355
s

=3

Z
%

2

X

s
X

%

|
LEISURE

e

SRR

I
S
385

5

%

2555
255

255

s

5

o]

T TIITIILL
SRR
e
SRR

3
%
5%
3%

%

3
5

|
-
5
o

55
o008

BRI

s
B
ks

ks
P

s
ksl

i patas
\
5 /

=
5
3
oot

7
5z
5
oiste

R

55

ENTERTAINMENT SPACE

LIVING ROOM

S
%

s
55

Tz
s
35
e

BT

T
38

3
R

e

w
- Eg A
T <
| | | RIS &2
RIS =9 -
| oS 3 -
| | RIS @ -
R 25 )
| | | # 30 —
3 p
| | | z2& -
ogo
| | | g -
cEL
| | | nieR) . - —
| 823 R
| >
| , =38 —
| o« I —
- | | gdo )
- | » ~
— —— | | ] S -
— — | | 2 s | -
- - =) 3 ~ |
- . I | | | NW_| s | _ 1
- - 5 54 r |
B - | 35 | | |
- - - | | 24 o s | _
_ - 4 & sl — |
- - | G| | |
e - 1 4 2 S5 | |
- e £ I s | | | | |
- - o T oS L B (..
— s I | | | | |
- R SR R IR B
- | e N R e | L | | | | | |
T | S e 55 | | | | |
I B = | |
e | | | |
— s ST T | | | | , |
S5
s |
= | | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| [ | | | | |
| | | | | |
[ | | |
| [ [ [
| [ . | | | 8¢ | | |
| \ [ s | ~&
| e | B2 | |
I s
| | S B TR | | € |
| R BRI s | | , u% | , |
! Es5ss <
| I R 3L | | w | | |
esstesetenet 1
s £ |
RS
| s sk | | |
 oseessseenatess! S , ,
| ks p | | |
gy Er | |
| L aeessatesesy w | 1 | | |
SR
| ] |
| s
| R !
| s \
g
S5 psssssecd
TR ks
R
| R
|
| |
|
| i
| /
[
| \ |
\ s
| [ B o
gt -
e
| b
e 555
| s 5
B35
e 3]
ey X Sesoresssess fesesetel 7
SIS 553 55
s s = P - |
— e ——— S 4 | | |
e — s R ]
L —— st b4 | | |
3
|
| | ,, | W | | |
p | |
| | | | § |
b |
| | | | AN |
|
| | | | 5 | |
tosesess
ks
| | | | 5] |
R
ke
| | | | il
| | | | L \ \
| [
| | | 2 |
| | | QE |
| 8 3
2 I .
, | | [ €s s
| | — | 38 e | g8
| | . | — 9 2E t +g
| | o g5 ¢
| | — | | oo [
- w %
L | =
| | | @ i
L £ —
, | ] 5, -
| | ES B -
R, [ 5 -
- | y -
- | I —
- | | 5
- | | 5
- |
- | |
|
| |
|
| | |
| | | -
| | | -
| | | - ~ -
| | | )
| | | g
| | | - b
— 3 -
| | . &=
| — 2E
| | ey ~
| F
% — —
| | | [
| | || 2
= ) R
| | | 88 ) -
| | | g = o -
i -
| | | [ [
| | | — — — -
| | | | _ e
| | |
| | ||
| | |
| | |
| | |
, | | | / L
| | | N
| | | e y
| | | , A ‘\
| | | /
| | | ===
| | |
| | |
| | | e
3
| fre} @
| | 3 ¢
| | || 8 z
| b w
| | | &
| | | v
|
| | | . |
|
| | | 2 |
|
| | | b \ y
| | | X /
o g \ /
| | | g P \ | /
L — 3 g |
| | | 8
¢ |
L o 4
| | fre &
w 13
| | WX
| | /
| | . 4
| \
| | | %
| | | p
|
| | |
|
| | |
| -
| | | \
I a2 , :
| | I | -
| | \
| | .
| | -
{ | \
| .
| , | I - al |
| | (. I |
| | -
| | — - | |
— (
| | | \ I
, | , | — | | ||
i |
| - I | | | | [
, S | | |1 |
| | | | | | |
) - |
| e | | I
) | (.. I
I | | | | | ,,, L . -
| | | | B -
— | | | | | o B
- | (! | L | | | - R B o —
| | L) - o UJ | - S - P
| L - | [ N
/ | - B S

ive
included)

PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR PLAN

826 sqft
(ground floor added for illustrat

purposes only - area not

SHEFFIELD
3 Concourse Way
Sheffield

Electric Works
S12BJ

SURREY
100 High St
Esher
Surrey
KT10 9QJ

CHESHIRE
Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW

T ECT S

CALDERPEEL

AR R CH

S|

100 @ AO DRAWN

21103 (PL) 115 E
09.06.22

01

PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR PLAN

DWG
DATE
SCALE

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

0114 250 7983

01372 203 335

0161929 7622



CALDERPEEL.COM

A
A
Al

Page 107

DATE _DRAWN

26-08-"
0
15-0
-08-
19-09-2

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

New or relocated windows / doors to

Z
2 =
2 3
£ S ews 3
= 2 SEs 2
= m ..m o % o o m
3 = Py 3 w T 5 &
: ' 3 c = 2% £ 9
O 3 fal / Q - 538 E S
ik 3 8 . 3js 5 ¢
w8 c 2 < 285 HE
w5 S > 2 g S8 .
3 : s 8 o > o O o .0
< < =] G |m 2 ”ﬂum L 2
: % o 2
Q 5| 2 X~ 3 g2 2 &
5 I o £ 3 23< 2 5
L MIE -y 5] s} - = 5
: K 2 S o w 2 ,
O 153 |2 c 5 s 8873 > ,
Z z[53|858 33 fy I37 g ¢
8 el © e = z2 £283L X 3
S22 8 2 c= o) |
A =553 ,
~ Sedmee | _ _ | |
w | 8|35 g \
= aEREsRe . | _ | | o
2 e H , | | | | |
Zz ¢ ¥ | | | | _ | , |

R
R

SRR

T AR,
.... R
TR .m.ﬁ.uw...ummwm&ww...%.?k.b. BRI
R R R

R R ERRRAARIL

e
SRR : ‘

S RTIIRIE
BRI
R RRRAIA

FTTIIL
RS

T
SRR
AL

:«..2‘.'.4
s
SRR L L

R

TS
R

T
R

e
AR T,
R RRARALE

T
R TITITE
R

RN
R

R

SR
RS

e E TS
st
R

R i
RS
AR

TS
SRR

T
1 SRS

R

R

T

e B 5552

- RIS R R

oot IS BRI ettt B

R s RIS s
\tbobcca RN $o%

R
S
R

R

2
S

s

%

2
535
K

5
o

5

5%
o282

%

2
3
%5

BATHROOM

//

AR
B

55
5
s

o
5

55

%
e

%
%

X

T
SRR

O R
R
SRR |

RITIILS
R

T
TR ITTIS
RIS

s
s

TR
SRR

FFL #7010

BEDROOM

|
| [ .
25 oo
| et T
| — 2
— - i TR oees|
| I S BR8 B
| I Soss RN
g TR 0 s eet isie
, | , P e RS
RS

ey

TR TR
R

s

KR

RIS

BRI Ry —

I
. s
s

R R R R R RS,
It e R RS EIESEL

RS
et et

e SR
R

FFL +70.10

BEDROOM
HABITABLE ROOM

Lt -
R ;
| |
| | | SRt
| s ,
RSB
| | | | s
| | 255 ]
| | T - I 72 L od |
| , 7 ] |
| | | £ 2 | , ,
| | | | ;_w ;w | , | ,
| | | | M M | |
| | | | “* & | | ,
| | | | R X | , |
| | | | |
| | | |
| |
|
| | | | |
|
, , I R | |
_ | |

BEDROOM
FFL +71.70

BATHROOM

I I

I A O
[

N / \

%UP
LOOR
L

e stalrea

TO SECOND F!

AR

FFL+71.70

__ : RRRRREER o ~ ,

— —
—

=
e

Yrorheid

bire

ing stable building)
o

Ist

ancillary space ab

g

o

S 3

m a
| | : m
,, , 3 £ ,, ,, ,
, ,, : , , |
,, , - 1 , , /
o | &2 - |
| ,, , L 2 .W | |
| | : , ,
, , D -_H _— 1
,, ,, , : ] _ ¢ ,,
, , | n = O |
, , O O wv | |
| | ’ ; s Q/, ,
, , o > 0 < | ,,
,, ,, Ol o X 5 |
,, ,, o ™ o) .Il, | |
| , , , SW
| | \ | | | | Lnfn%
| | | , , ,, r
| | \ | | H WW
,f, i 1K
ﬂ, ,, i i
| , , ,
, |
| ,, / ,, ,
| | // , ,
| , , , ‘
| , , , n
| , , ,

| | \

100 High St

SURREY
Esher

CHESHIRE
Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WAT4 4DW

T E C T S

CALDERPEEL

S|

21103 (PL) 117 E
09.06.22

1

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

DWG
DATE
SCALE

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

Sheffield

S128BJ
0114 250 7983

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

0161 929 7622



CHESHIRE

Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW
0161 929 7622

SURREY

100 High St
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN o |

SHEFFIELD

Electric Works

3 Concourse Way
Sheffield

S1 2BJ

0114 250 7983

1,016 sq?t

STORAGE

FFL +74.35

HABITABLE ROOM

FFL +74.35

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

REV_DESCRIPTION DATE_DRAWN
10m A Labels added following planning officers advice 760822 S|
B Revised Planning 150623 AG
CPlanner comment update 19.0923 AG

\\\ .
New or relocated windows / doors to
replace existing

Windows/ doors to be rem

New doors to match existing door
frames

[0 ] Proposed walls (all walls to be

repaired where necessary and

new wall finishes to be like for
like)

Existing walls (to be demolished)

Outline of Previous Proposals

80T abed

CALDERPEEL

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
DWG: 21103 (PL) 119 C

DATE: 09.06.22

SCALE: 1:100 @ A1 DRAWN: S

AR RCHITET CTS



G

Al

DATE _DRAWN

15-06-
19-09-2

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

CALODERPEEL.COM

Planner comment update

Revised Planning
D Updated windows on New Hall Lower Ground

A Glazed doors fo west elevation added

C
E

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

REV_DESCRIPTION

10m

Page 109

j
!

I

AN
\

i i T T
1 I - [t ] ]
a H I Z I |
H @) i —
L H [ = H H 4m
I < I - =
[l i H T T w 1 H N
I : Al T o x I
i g i wm :
[ L
I 7 H 4 |
i i g :
L A L
i o i
I ] O i
o
i i S |
4
i i & :
I ! i [z i
i b H | Tk H T
- | m ||
S
i 3 i
- m ||
i g : i
, T | : i
/, ]
11 T I
| == ]
L UWH[ o) W 1 H
| =t e 1 :
i &=l & e i
I
i | | | i
H ,, — I|‘|‘|‘|‘|A .
/\D_ o RARRRHAL  108dn L == == =l I ——— i
% e il - i .
e I
===/ 7
=== L

)

=
[T

T
B B B A B B B S B B U

|

_
SEEen e

/
T
T

D00

Proposed West Elevation
Outline of Existing Agricultural Building

Proposed North Elevation (Rear Elevation)

Proposed South Elevation (Front Elevation)

Outline of Existing Agricultural Building

T ECT S

CALDERPEEL

A R CH

S|

100 @ AO DRAWN

21103 (PL) 210 E
31.03.22

1

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - NEW HALL EXTENSION
DWG

DATE

SCALE

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

3 Concourse Way

Sheffield

Electric Works
S12BJ

SHEFFIELD
0114 250 7983

Proposed East Elevation

Outline of Existing Agricultural Building

SURREY

100 High St
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

CHESHIRE
Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW
0161 929 7622



Page 110 CALDERPEEL.COM
| | || || || || | '
1 2 4 5 10m
© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV_DESCRIPTION DATE _DRAWN
A REVISED PLANNING PROPOSALS 25-05-23  AG
E
i
_m
—
——
!
|
r
1
|
% J
Ll ] |
\
|
!
|
7 Ty 7 )
: il
e e
: S e
Proposed East Facing Elevation
==
Proposed North Facing Elevation
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD MANCHESTER LIVERPOOL C H L n E R P E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works All Work and Social AvenueHQ AR RCHITETLCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way  XYZ Building 17 Mann Island NEW HALL. STOCKS LANE PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - STABLES
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield 2 Hardman Boulevard  Liverpool DWG: 21103 (PL) 222 A
WA14 4DW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ M3 3AQ L3 1BP PRIVATE CLIENT DATE: 13.04.22
0161929 7622 01372 203 335 0114 250 7983 0161929 7622 0151 662 0122 SCALE: 1:100 @ A1 DRAWN: AG



Page 111

CALDERPEEL.COM

0 1 2 3 4 10m
© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD
NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
REV_DESCRIPTION DATE DRAWN
PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
NORTH
WEST EAST
SOUTH
CHESHIRE SURREY SHEFFIELD MANCHESTER LIVERPOOL C H L D E R P E E L
Market Court 100 High St Electric Works All Work and Social AvenueHQ ARCHITETCTS
20-24 Church St Esher 3 Concourse Way  XYZ Building 17 Mann Island NEW HALL. STOCKS LANE PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - GARAGING
Altrincham Surrey Sheffield 2 Hardman Boulevard  Liverpool DWG: 21103 (PL) 223 ~
WA14 4DW KT10 9QJ S1 2BJ M3 3AQ L3 1BP PRIVATE CLIENT DATE: 15.06.23

0161929 7622

01372 203 335

0114 250 7983

0161929 7622

0151 662 0122

SCALE: 1:100 @ A1l

DRAWN: AG



CHESHIRE

Proposed Section AA

FIRST FLOQR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

N

-
e
i

—

LOWER GROUND FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

=
— s
T
~-
-
~-
a

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Proposed Section BB

SURREY

SHEFFIELD

10m

CALDERPEEL.COM

© CALDERPEEL PARTNERSHIP LTD

NOTE: DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

REV_DESCRIPTION DATE _DRAWN
A Main House added 09-06-22 Sl
B Labels added 21-06-22 Sl
C _Revised Planning 15-06-23 AG
D Planner comment update 19-09-23 AG

CALDERPEEL

Market Court
20-24 Church St
Altrincham
WA14 4DW
0161 929 7622

100 High St
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QJ
01372 203 335

Electric Works

3 Concourse Way
Sheffield

S1 2BJ

0114 250 7983

NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER

PROPOSED SECTIONS

DWG: 21103 (PL) 311 D
DATE: 13.04.22

SCALE: 1:100 @ A1 DRAWN:

S|

R R CH

T E C T S



Application No:

Page 113 Agenda Item 7

22/2594M

Location: NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16 9HE

Proposal: Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the existing
dwelling to include demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and
part of the garage and their replacement with a reconfigured two storey
rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition of
the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced with
a single storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping
enhancements, reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated
works.

Applicant: c/o Agent, Calderpeel

Expiry Date: 22-Aug-2022

SUMMARY

The application site comprises New Hall, a Grade Il listed building and its
associated outbuildings. The site is set within spacious grounds and is
located within the countryside and Green Belt.

This submission mirrors applications 22/1586M and 22/1088M which secured
consent for modifications to the main dwelling in April 2023, with the addition
of a leisure suite to be incorporated into the existing former stables with a
single storey extension replacing the current rear parking bays. These
additions retain a subservient role in scale and appearance, appropriate to
its context, and positively contribute to the historic group of buildings.

The proposals also include a new two storey garage to replace the existing
agricultural outbuilding, but as a detached building that is not curtilage listed,
Listed Building Consent is not required for this element.

The application is therefore recommended for approval.

OFFICIAL



Page 114

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION

Approval subject to conditions

REASON FOR REFERRAL

This application is referred to the Northern Planning Committee because the site area is 2.2
hectares and in line with the Council’'s Constitution it requires a Committee decision.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT

The application relates New Hall, a 4 storey Grade Il listed building, with its adjoining cottage
and coach house, and associated outbuilding accessed off a private drive off Stocks lane, Over
Peover. New Hall is a late 17th century local gentry house, extended in the 19th century. The
site was formally in use as a polo club and is now to be returned to a family home.

The property occupies a relatively flat and isolated position with several outbuildings located
within its spacious grounds including a converted stable and garage building (previously used
as holiday let accommodation, now used as ancillary accommodation) and a portal frame
agricultural building. A separate dwelling lies some 100m to the south east of the site (also
within the ownership of the applicant.)

LIST DESCRIPTION

‘House formerly farmhouse. Mid C17. English garden wall bond brick with stone dressings and
slate roof. Two storeys with half basement and attic. Entrance front: Rendered and colour
washed. Recessed centre with projecting gabled wings to either side. Bands between ground
and first and first and attic floors. Flight of 7 C20 steps to central front door which is planked
with studs and strap-hinges. One basement window to left of staircase. One C20 first floor
window above door of 4 x 4 panes. Right hand gable wing has 3 x 3 pane window to basement
with 3-light casement windows to ground and first floors and circular window in gable to attic.
Left hand wing similar save for chamfered mullion to 2-light basement window and square hatch
doorway to right of this. The gables have stone kneelers and copings which are rendered and
flat apexes to the gables. Rear: Similar arrangement of projecting gables to either side, save
that the central portion is here only slightly recessed. All windows of C19 cambered-headed
format. Stone kneelers, copings and surrounds to porthole windows are here shown. C18
addition to left. Interior: Fine C17 staircase with twisted balusters, moulded, ramped handrail,
panelled newels and dado panelling’.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
The application seeks listed building consent (LBC) for a scheme of works to refurbish the

dwelling (including the replacement of modern windows, reconstruction of later side extensions,
removal of rear later extension and replacement with two storey rear extension, relandscaping

OFFICIAL



Page 115

(including replacement of secondary driveway), relocation of the tennis courts, expose original
brickwork to New Hall). These works have previously been approved as part of householder
and LBC applications (22/1586m and 22/1088m). During the course of the application the plans
for an attached leisure suite were amended.

This application now proposes the conversion and extension of the existing former stable
building to a leisure suite and a proposed two storey building for parking and ancillary
accommodation which would replace the existing agricultural building (as noted above this later
element does not require LBC).

RELEVANT HISTORY

22/2593M - Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include demolition of
cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a
reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition
of the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced with a single storey
leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements, reconfiguration of the garden
curtilage and associated works — Pending

22/1586M - Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include demolition of
Cottage/link/Coach House, rear wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a
reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations landscaping
enhancements and associated works - Approved 31 April 2023

22/1088M - Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to
include demolition of Cottage/link/Coach House, rear wing and part of the garage and their
replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation
alterations landscaping enhancements and associated works. — Approved 315' April 2023

20/5111M Prior approval for conversion of agricultural building into Dwelling Approved 12
January 2021

20/3962M Prior approval of change of use for conversion of agricultural building into dwelling.
Refused 4 November 2020

11/3859M Change of use of Barn to Holiday Accommodation Approved 14-Dec-2011

10/4017M Erection of field shelter for use in conjunction with polo pitch Refused 4 February
2011

10/0818M Proposed single storey rear extension Approved 28 April 2010
10/1122M - Proposed Single Storey Rear Extension - Approved with conditions - 19-May 2010

09/4299M - Proposed agricultural storage building - Determination - appvl not reqd (stage 1) /
20-Jan-2010

09/3673M - Change of use of barn to holiday accommodation - Approved with conditions / 10-
Feb-2010

OFFICIAL



Page 116

09/3449M - Erection of stables and agricultural building - Withdrawn / 16-Dec-2009

09/1745M Construction of helicopter landing pad and agricultural outbuilding with associated
footpath and track (retrospective) - Refused 26 August 20019

07/1390P Retention of orangery/conservatory. Refused 26 July 2007

06/0351P Certificate of lawfulness for existing use of land as residential Curtilage - Withdrawn
16 March 2012

06/0515P - Demolition of agricultural buildings. erection of single storey Building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & agricultural storage - Approved with conditions
/ 19-Apr-2006

06/0514P Listed building consent - Demolition of agricultural buildings. Erection of single storey
building & refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & Agricultural storage - Approved 19
April 2006

05/2906 Demolition of existing agricultural buildings. Erection of single storey building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form stables & garaging -

Withdrawn 26 January 2006

05/2907P Demolition of existing agricultural buildings. Erection of Single storey building &
refurbishment of existing barn to form Stables & garaging -

Withdrawn 25 Jan 2006

05/1857P Full planning Conversion of barn to form ancillary accommodation & erection of
Stable block with garages & first floor workshops - Withdrawn 9 July 2005

05/1856P Listed building consent - Conversion of barn to form ancillary living
accommodation. Erection of extension and demolition of existing buildings.
Withdrawn- July 2005

00/0199P - First floor front extension - Refused 28 March 2000

00/0937P First floor side extension Approved 21 June 2000

32277PB - Bedroom, bathroom, kitchen and laundry extension and internal alterations -
Approved 28 January 1983

34388P Brick garage Approved 11 August 1983
30297PB — Kitchen and utility extensions — 11 June 1982

29128P - Conversion of outbuildings to form separate dwelling - Refused 1982
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

For the purposes of this application the Development Plan in Cheshire East comprises:-

OFFICIAL



Page 117

Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2010-2030 — Adopted July 2017
MP1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development

SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East

SD2 Sustainable Development Principles

SE1 - Design

SE 7 - The Historic Environment

Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD)- Adopted
December 2022

HERL1 Heritage assets

HER 4 Listed Buildings

GENL1 Design principles

Peover Superior Neighbourhood Plan - November 2019
HAL — Heritage Assets

Other material planning considerations
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

CONSULTATIONS

Peover Superior Parish Council — No comments received
NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS

No representations received

OFFICER APPRAISAL

Background

Full consent (22/1586M) and listed building consent (22/1088M) was secured at this site in April
2023, for improvements to the dwelling, comprising;

replacement of modern windows with timber windows,

reconstruction of later side extensions,

removal of rear later extension and replacement with two storey rear extension,
relandscaping (including replacement of secondary driveway),

relocation of the tennis courts,

removal of rear recessed patio and the

removal of render to the front elevation of New Hall to expose original brickwork.
removal the rear brick built open fronted garage at the rear of the stable building.

This application for listed building consent incorporates all the details within the above approved
applications in addition to the incorporation of the leisure suite to the former stable block and
replacement of the agriculture building with a detached garage.

This scheme originally proposed a large addition to the side of the main house to contain the

leisure facilities which was considered to be harmful to the setting and significance of the listed
manor house and its barns, due to its scale and design.

OFFICIAL



Page 118

Heritage and Design

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states, ‘In
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed
building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.’

The NPPF makes clear in paragraph 199 that great weight should be given to the conservation
of designated heritage assets and their setting. CELPS Policy SE7 supports proposals which
do not cause harm to or better reveal the significance of heritage assets. SADPD policy HER 4
explains that when considering proposals which affect a listed building that the Council will
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of
special architectural or historic interest that it possesses. Proposals involving loss of or
substantial harm to the significance of a listed building or structure will normally be refused,
unless it can be demonstrated that this is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits,
which outweigh the harm. Where a proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a listed building, the harm will be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal, including securing its optimum viable alternative use

Peover Superior NP Policy LCD 1 seeks to ensure buildings, features and materials are
representative of the area. Policy HA1 of the Peover Superior NP supports proposals which
conserve and enhance the Parish’s heritage assets and their setting and where the level of
harm to the significance of the asset has been sufficiently outweighed by arising public benefits.

New Hall is a late 17" century Grade Il listed local gentry house, extended in the late 19t
century. Set within landscaped grounds with a central tree lined driveway it is surrounded by
open fields, with tree lined boundaries. It has an early 18th century barn range to its south
(considered to be curtilage listed).

The Grade Il designation of New Hall denotes it is a building of national importance for its
special architectural and historic interest. Its interest lies in its origins as a local gentry house,
its architectural form set around a centralised plan. It holds a group value with the stable block
and currently has a sympathetic immediate and wider landscape setting, with sylvan character
and open fields beyond.

To the east of the main house are two later C19th additions, a two storey former cottage/ kitchen
wing and coach house, likely to have been added when the site became a farmstead in the
C19th. Both have been heavily modified with modern render and replacement windows, porch
and link additions to the front, and a 20th century stack to the kitchen wing. There have been
significant internal alterations to both buildings and a late 20th century addition to the rear of
the kitchen wing. The only part of remaining historic fabric is a small area of exposed brickwork
to the rear.

The barn/stable range lies to the south of the dwelling and dates from the 18th century, with
the southern range added in the 19th century, with various alterations in the 2000’s. Prior to the
alterations, historic information shows that the building has previously had a number of large
sheds and additions to its east and south during the 20th century which filled the courtyard

OFFICIAL



Page 119

space, and have been subsequently demolished. An existing agricultural building lies to the
east of the former stable block.

Internally the former stables have been previously partially converted into self- contained units
with modern fittings, the only main element of interest being the trusses within the attic and
remain ancillary to the main house.

More recently, consent was granted in April 2023 for the refurbishment and restoration of the
house, reconstruction of two later side extensions and new landscaping. This submission
follows on from this consent and contains the approved works, plus the conversion of the
existing former stable building to the leisure suite and replacement of the agricultural building
with a garage and ancillary building.

There is no objection to the previously approved works to the main dwelling and wider
landscaping, subject to conditions securing the detail.

The Conservation officer is satisfied that the former stable block is a suitable base for the leisure
complex and that the internal alterations and extension at the rear are acceptable and more in
keeping with the historic barn range than the existing extension and will utilise materials to
match. The design of the extension is a simple addition that is subservient to the existing
building and will not detract from the appearance of the collection of buildings.

The agricultural shed will be replaced with a traditionally designed brick building. A courtyard is
retained between the rear of the proposed leisure suite and proposed garage with landscaping
surrounding the buildings. The replacement building is considered to be an acceptable form
and design for this domestic outbuilding.

Overall, the scheme is considered to have overcome heritage concerns raised on the original
scheme relating to the large extension to the side of the house.

Subject to conditions, the proposals are considered acceptable and in accordance with the
provisions of development plan policy, and advice within the NPPF.

Ecology

Evidence of bat activity in the form of minor roosts of a number of relatively common bat species
has been recorded within the existing buildings on site. This matter and assessment against
the Habitats Regulations is considered in detail in the accompanying application for full planning
permission (22/2593M), which appears elsewhere on the agenda.

CONCLUSION

The proposals are considered to preserve the historic integrity and significance of this listed
building, and the curtilage listed outbuilding. As such the proposals accord with local and
national planning policy and are therefore recommended for approval.
RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to the following conditions

1. Time limit

OFFICIAL



Page 120

2. Approved plans

3. Materials samples to be submitted and approved

4. Details of bricks to be submitted and approved

5. Brick sample panel to be provided prior to commencement

6. Details of windows and doors at 1:20

7. Window/doors recessed a minimum of 200mm

8. Rainwater goods to be black metal

9. Conservation style roof lights

10.Method statement for replacement/ repair/treatment of remaining brickwork to the main
dwelling

11.Details of replacement staircase to dwelling

OFFICIAL



2anuy Lanc %) ~

Ridge Cottage \> .
Hollvhedge Farm Daisy > 9 Sotage a = Q

Bank Farm

Ny

Farm House /Radbroke Hall “°

\ N~
o . O, Newhall F. O

/ % \ Jg%\ .
i\//_,jed»erfc;é& :& 0,3 - =S f\/\'\ Blease Farm @ \/\% fv
Radbroke 0‘ 5 ﬂ / Qx_/_\\\ o
(93
laks Farm GE’_'é\ 3&
P

T¢T abed

Laiaenlgaynn% ~  Knutsford \ 0 <.
Lod é
/\ ﬁ ge“ A0 <}° e Merrydale |\
% 4 Manor Farm N .‘ i? ) } Manor
v / % < Colshaw Hall
N Road Side Farm b~ 0
\{ ) M \\/__ ?‘ o/ <
o e S O\;er Peover
Q W D Q&

b, & 2,09

Hillcrest Farm

; 04wk e D S —

OFFICIAL




Page 122

OFFICIAL



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 21/5123M - IVY HOUSE, IVY ROAD, MACCLESFIELD: Proposed replacement of existing buildings with 29 no. dwellings for Mr Daniel Brocklehurst, Peaks and Plains Housing Trust
	5123M 2 block plans
	house type plan
	Sheets
	1004 - House Type / Tenure Allocation


	block 01 elevs
	Sheets
	1010 - Block 1 Floor Plans
	1011 - Block 1 Elevations


	block 01 floor plans
	Sheets
	1010 - Block 1 Floor Plans
	1011 - Block 1 Elevations


	block 02 elevs
	Sheets
	1015 - Block 2 Floor Plans
	1016 - Block 2 Elevations


	block 02 floor plans
	Sheets
	1015 - Block 2 Floor Plans
	1016 - Block 2 Elevations


	block 03 elevs
	Sheets
	1020 - Block 3 Floor Plans
	1021 - Block 3 Elevations


	block 03 floor plans
	Sheets
	1020 - Block 3 Floor Plans
	1021 - Block 3 Elevations


	block 04 elevs
	Sheets
	1026 - Block 4 Elevations


	block 04 floor plans
	Sheets
	1025 - Block 4 Floor Plans


	block 05 elevs
	Sheets
	1030 - Block 5 Floor Plans
	1031 - Block 5 Elevations


	block 05 floor plans
	Sheets
	1030 - Block 5 Floor Plans
	1031 - Block 5 Elevations


	block 06 elevs
	Sheets
	1036 - Block 6 Elevations


	block 06 floor plans
	Sheets
	1035 - Block 6 Floor Plans


	block 07 elevs
	Sheets
	1041 - Block 7 Elevations


	block 07 floor plans
	Sheets
	1040 - Block 7 Floor Plans
	1041 - Block 7 Elevations


	block 08 elevs
	Sheets
	1046 - Block 8 Elevations


	block 08 floor plans
	Sheets
	1045 - Block 8 Floor Plans


	block 09 elevs
	Sheets
	1050 - Block 9 Floor Plans
	1051 - Block 9 Elevations


	block 09 floor plans
	Sheets
	1050 - Block 9 Floor Plans
	1051 - Block 9 Elevations


	block 10 elevs
	Sheets
	1055 - Block 10 Floor Plans
	1056 - Block 10 Elevations


	block 10 floor plan
	Sheets
	1055 - Block 10 Floor Plans
	1056 - Block 10 Elevations


	block 11 elevs
	Sheets
	1061 - Block 11 Elevations


	block 11 floor plans
	Sheets
	1060 - Block 11 Floor Plans


	block 12 elevs
	Sheets
	1066 - Block 12 Elevations


	block 12 floor plans
	Sheets
	1065 - Block 12 Floor Plans


	block 13 elevs
	Sheets
	1070 - Block 13 Floor Plans
	1071 - Block 13 Elevations


	block 13 floor plans
	Sheets
	1070 - Block 13 Floor Plans
	1071 - Block 13 Elevations




	6 22/2593M - NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16 9HE: Refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition of the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced with a single storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements, reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated works for c/o Agent, Calderpeel
	2593M key plans
	2593M front sheet
	006 A existing site location plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-P


	004 A existing site plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-L


	015 existing lower ground plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	017 existing first floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	018 existing second floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	019 existing roof plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	021 existing elevations main house
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-P


	022 existing elevations stables
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-P


	023 existing agricultural building
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A3-L


	056 C proposed site plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-L


	111 F proposed ground floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	113 C proposed roof plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	115 E proposed lower ground floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	117 E proposed first floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	119 C proposed second floor plan
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	210 E proposed elevations
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A0-L


	222 A proposed elevations stables
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-P


	223 proposed elevations garaging
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-P


	311 D proposed sections
	Sheets and Views
	CPP A1-L




	7 22/2594M - NEW HALL, STOCKS LANE, OVER PEOVER, CHESHIRE, WA16 9HE: Listed building consent for refurbishment and restoration of the existing dwelling to include demolition of cottage/link/coach house, rear wing and part of the garage and their replacement with a reconfigured two storey rear and side extension, internal and elevation alterations, demolition of the existing agricultural building and part of the garage to be replaced with a single storey leisure suite and detached garage, landscaping enhancements, reconfiguration of the garden curtilage and associated works for c/o Agent, Calderpeel



